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Chairman’s*Statement-and*Management Discussion and Analysis

FRBEREEREFRE DM

The board of directors of Easyknit Enterprises
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to
present the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2013 together with
comparative figures. These consolidated financial
statements have been reviewed by the Company’s
audit committee.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
nil).

CORPORATE RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
recorded a turnover of HK$223,756,000,
representing a decrease of HK$63,160,000 or 22.0%
from HK$286,916,000 for the year 2012.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2013 amounted to
HK$4,695,000 (2012: loss of HK$34,762,000). The
profit was mainly attributable to, among other things,
a profit of HK$26,617,000 arising on discontinued
operations of bleaching, dyeing and knitting
businesses by deregistering 2 PRC subsidiaries;
the turn from loss to gain of HK$5,758,000 on fair
value changes of investments held for trading; and
no further impairment losses recognised on goodwill
and intangible assets in the garment sourcing and
exporting businesses.

The basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2013 was HK$0.024 (2012: basic loss per
share of HK$0.979).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, the Group was principally engaged
in the business of garment sourcing and exporting
businesses, property investments, investment in
securities and loan financing.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBHEWR DT @

Geographical Analysis of Turnover

During the year, the turnover from garment sourcing
and exporting businesses was mainly derived from
customers in the USA. Rental income from the
investment properties were derived from properties
located in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(i)

(ii)

Garment Sourcing and Exporting Businesses

For the year ended 31 March 2013, this segment
recorded a turnover of HK$211,770,000 (2012:
HK$280,918,000) representing 24.6% decrease
comparing with 2012. Cost of sales for the
year amounted to HK$190,157,000 (2012:
HK$256,138,000). The loss of HK$1,601,000
(2012: loss of HK$61,799,000) was mainly due to
the decrease of turnover despite the Company’s
efforts to improve the profit margin.

Property Investments

Turnover from the property investments segment
increased by 96.4% to HK$11,780,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2013 as compared to 2012
(2012: HK$5,998,000) of which HK$7,492,000
and HK$4,288,000 were generated from
the properties in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively. The increase in turnover primarily
are attributed to the acquisition of the investment
properties; the effect of tenancy renewal, periodic
rental adjustments under the clauses of the
existing tenancy agreements and new tenants.

The Group has two blocks of factory premises
and four blocks of dormitories with a total gross
floor area of 52,624 sq.m. in Huzhou, PRC. In
addition, the construction works on a new factory
block target to be completed by mid 2013.

(iii) Investment in Securities

The Group has maintained a portfolio of listed
securities in Hong Kong which are held for
investments and for the year ended 31 March
2013, this segment has recorded a gain of
HK$7,472,000.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBNWR ST @

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had bank balances
and cash amounting to HK$277,411,000 (2012:
HK$205,477,000). The gearing ratio of the Group was
0.21 (2012: nil). As at 31 March 2013, the Group’s
current ratio was 11.9 (2012: approximately 7.1) which
was calculated on the basis of current assets of
HK$373,464,000 (2012: HK$290,253,000) to current
liabilities of HK$31,298,000 (2012: HK$41,012,000).
During the year, the Group financed its projects and
operation primarily through shareholders equity and
bank borrowings.

Capital Structure

(i) On 12 June 2012, the Company completed the
placing of 97,470,000 new shares to not less
than six placees at a placing price of HK$0.141
per share. The Company raised HK$13,606,000
(net of expenses).

(i) On 31 July 2012, the Company completed the
placing of 114,700,000 new shares to not less
than six placees at a placing price of HK$0.106
per share. The Company raised HK$12,037,000
(net of expenses).

(iii) On 3 October 2012, the Company completed the
raising of HK$29,229,000 (net of expenses) by
way of rights issue of 381,428,337 rights shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.077 per rights
share on the basis of 1 rights share for every 2
shares held.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBHEWR DT @

(iv) On 10 December 2012, the Company completed
the capital reorganization, among other things,
to consolidate every 20 issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each into 1 consolidated
share of HK$0.20 each; and on 11 January
2013, completed the raising of HK$113,875,000
(net of expenses) by way of the rights issue of
286,071,250 rights shares at a subscription price
of HK$0.40 per rights share on the basis of 5
rights shares for every one share held.

(v) On 18 February 2013, the Company completed
the placing of 68,656,000 new shares to not less
than six placees at a placing price of HK$0.44
per share. The Company raised HK$29,906,000
(net of expenses).

As at 31 March 2013, the total number of issued
ordinary shares of the Company was 411,941,500
(2012: 550,686,675 shares).

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2013, bank loans amounting to
HK$168,687,000 (2012: nil) were secured by the
investment properties of the Group having a net
book value of HK$372,000,000.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year, the Group has acquired 5 properties
in 15 Matheson Street and a property at ground
floor of 6 Cannon Street, Causeway Bay, Hong
Kong. Furthermore, the Group has completed
the deregistration of 2 PRC subsidiaries, namely
Easyknit Dyeing and Printing (Huzhou) Co., Limited
and Easyknit Weaving (Huzhou) Co., Limited, in
April 2012. The deregistration of the aforesaid
2 subsidiaries was resolved by the directors in
November 2009 to cease the bleaching, dyeing and
knitting businesses in the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBNWR ST @

Exposure on Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

Most of the Group’s revenues and payments are
in US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
During the year, the Group did not have significant
exposure to the fluctuation in exchange rates and
thus, no financial instrument for hedging purposes
was employed. The directors considered the risk of
exposure to the currency fluctuation to be minimal.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (2012: nil).

Capital Expenditure and Capital Commitments

During the year under review, the Group spent
HK$279,422,000 (2012: HK$2,243,000) on the
acquisition of investment properties.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided of HK$5,016,000
(2012: HK$171,850,000).

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2013/14, the global economy is
going to be faced with a number of uncertainties,
which stems from the negative news on the
European and American debt crisis from time to
time, the softer-than-expected pace of economic
recovery in the US and Japan, plus the slowdown in
rate of economic growth in the PRC. Therefore, the
Board estimates that the investment and business
landscape will remain challenging in the coming
year.

The operating environment of the garment sourcing
and exporting businesses was still challenging due to
record high price of cotton, continued appreciation of
Renminbi against US dollars and overall price surge
resulting from inflation. However, the Company will
continue to enhance its competitiveness by providing
customers with more products of better quality and
design.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBHEWR DT @

For the property investment, although the newly
launched tax measures on residential flats to buyers
in Hong Kong will inevitably cause adverse impact
on the residential property market in short run,
the underlying housing demand is anticipated to
remain strong due to the continuing demographic
development, low mortgage rates and limited supply
of new units. To better the position to cope with the
uncertainties on global economy and changing local
policy, the Group will continue seeking opportunities
in the acquisition of properties in good locations,
keep on revising and adjusting development plans,
marketing strategies to tackle the changes in the
market conditions. The Group expected that revenue
and contribution from property investment segment
would continue to grow and become one of the
Group’s major recurring and reliable income sources.

On front of securities investment business, the Board
will stick to a prudent principle in its investment
strategy in focusing on investment vehicles which
are relatively lower risks in order to secure stable
returns at a minimal risk.

Going forward, the Group will vigilantly strengthen
its core business and operations with a view
to undertaking steady progress in a constantly
challenging market. In addition, the Group will keep
on exploring the investment opportunities in hotel
and service apartment projects, notwithstanding, the
Company currently has not identified any specific
acquisition target.

As in the past, the Group will stay in alerted caution,
solidify its financial and asset positions, and continue
to intensify its investment in properties so as to
transform the potential value of the investments into
a shareholders’ value, generating sustained revenue
for the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement and.Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

ITREHREREEBTWR DN

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had 39 employees
(2012: 43). Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$13,705,000 for the
year under review (2012: HK$14,515,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing industry
practice. The Group has set out the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme for the Hong Kong’s
employees and has made contributions to the
stated-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government for the PRC employees. The
Group has a share option scheme to motivate valued
employees.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme
(the “Scheme”) was adopted and approved by the
shareholders of the Company for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date. Since the
adoption date, the Board, may at its discretion, grant
share options to any eligible person to subscribe for
the shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions as stipulated in the Scheme. No share
options has been granted for the year ended 31
March 20183.
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Chairman’s Statément and Management Discussion%nd Analysis (continued)

FEREREEBTWE DN @)

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere gratitude to our staff and fellow directors
for their contribution to the Group's development
and cordial thanks to the continuing support of
our customers, suppliers, business associates and
shareholders.

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013

2

AANBRREZE BUBIRHLL
AZBINEZEL NUARERR L
ER AETRE2ERF  #ER [
RUYREBERZ T XFRTROHE

il

LEREETTHAZ

7 2013FE6 521 H

KEBXREEERAR 201213 FH 11



BiographiCal Details of Directors

EECEE

MR. KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kwong, aged 70, is an executive director,
chairman, chief executive officer and authorised
representative of the Company and a member and
chairman of the Executive Committee. He is also
an executive director, president, chief executive
officer and authorised representative, and a member
and chairman of the executive committee of
Easyknit International Holdings Limited (“Easyknit
International”). Mr. Kwong was graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1965 and was admitted
as Barrister-at-Law in the United Kingdom and Hong
Kong in 1970 and 1973 respectively. He has over 30
years of experience in the legal field. He serves as
director of various subsidiaries of the Company and
Easyknit International. Mr. Kwong was appointed to
the Board as an independent non-executive director
in 2003, and was subsequently re-designated as an
executive director in 2007. In 2007, Mr. Kwong was
appointed as chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company.
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Biographical D€tails of Directors (eentinued)

BEECEREM®)

MS. LUI YUK CHU
Deputy Chairman

Ms. Lui, aged 55, is an executive director and
deputy chairman of the Company and a member of
the Executive Committee. She is also an executive
director and vice president, and a member of the
Executive Committee of Easyknit International. Ms.
Lui has been involved in the textiles industry for over
30 years and has extensive experience in design,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution of apparel.
She serves as director of various subsidiaries of
the Company and Easyknit International. Ms. Lui
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
in 2003 and was appointed as deputy chairman in
2006. She is also the mother of Ms. Koon Ho Yan
Candy, an executive director of the Company.

MS. KOON HO YAN CANDY

Ms. Koon, aged 28, is an executive director and
authorised representative of the Company and is
a member of the Executive Committee. She is also
an executive director, authorised representative and
a member of the Executive Committee of Easyknit
International. Ms. Koon obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics and Politics from the University
of Durham in 2007. She also received her Bachelor of
Laws degree and Legal Practice Course qualification
in 2009 from the College of Law, England. Ms. Koon
is the daughter of Ms. Lui, the deputy chairman of
the Company.
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Biographical Dé€tails of Directors (eentinued)

BEECERE®)

MR. TSE WING CHIU RICKY

Mr. Tse, aged 55, is a non-executive director of the
Company. He is also a non-executive director of
Easyknit International. Mr. Tse obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from Adam
Smith University of America in the United States in
1996. He has more than 30 years of experience in
garment manufacturing and merchandising. Mr. Tse
was appointed to the Board as an executive director
and vice chairman in 2005, and was subsequently
re-designated from vice chairman to chairman and
appointed as chief executive officer in 2006. In 2007,
Mr. Tse was re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director of the Company and
resigned as chairman and chief executive officer.

MR. KAN KA HON

Mr. Kan, aged 61, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2003. He is also
a member and chairman of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science from The University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 30 years of experience
in accounting and finance. Mr. Kan is also an
independent non-executive director of Victory City
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0539).
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Biographical D€tails of Directors (eentinued)

BEECEREM®)

MR. LAU SIN MING

Mr. Lau, aged 51, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He is also
a member and chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He has over 30 years
of experience in accounting and auditing and is
now practicing in his own name as certified public
accountant.

MR. FOO TAK CHING

Mr. Foo, aged 79, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2007. He is also a
member and chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He is currently a Partner of Messrs.
Liu, Choi & Chan, a firm of solicitors and notaries
in Hong Kong and has been practising in the legal
field for more than 30 years. He obtained his LL.B.
from the University of London in the United Kingdom
in 1968 and a diploma in Chinese Laws from the
University of East Asia in Macau in 1987. Mr. Foo
was admitted as a solicitor in England and Wales
and Hong Kong in 1972 and 1973, respectively, and
as a barrister and solicitor in the State of Victoria,
Australia in 1982. He is a Notary Public and a China
Appointed Attesting Officer.
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Corporate€ Goverrance Report
TEERME

The Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance by emphasizing transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and
fairness. The Board strives to ensure that effective
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests
of the shareholders of the Company and to enhance
long-term shareholders’ value.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Company complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (“Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, with the exception
of code provision A.2.1.

Code Provision A.2.1.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company. The Board
considers that the combination of the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company as the
Board will meet regularly to consider major matters
affecting the operations of the Group. The Board is of
the view that this structure provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership, which can facilitate
the formulation and implementation of its strategies
and decisions and enable it to grasp business
opportunities and react to changes efficiently. As
such, it is beneficial to the business prospects of the
Group.
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Corporate Govérnance Report (continued)
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THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises 7 Directors, with
3 executive Directors, a non-executive Director
and 3 independent non-executive Directors. The
Board has in its composition a balance of skills
and experience necessary for decision making
and fulfilling its business needs. The participation
of non-executive Directors in the Board bring
independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all shareholders of the Company have been duly
considered.

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract for a term of 3 years and is
subject to termination by either party giving not less
than one month’s prior written notice to the other.

The Board considers that all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent and has
received from each of them the annual confirmations
of independence required by the Listing Rules.

The composition of the Board during the year and up
to date of this report is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim —
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu — Deputy Chairman

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Kan Ka Hon

Mr. Lau Sin Ming
Mr. Foo Tak Ching
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Corporate Govérnance Report (continued)
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The Board is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s overall strategies and
policies, approval of business plans, evaluating
the performance of the Group and oversight of
management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies
with particular attention paid to the growth and
financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the
Group to executive Directors and senior management
of every business segment, while reserving certain
key matters for its approval. Decisions of the Board
are communicated to the management through
executive Directors who have attended Board
meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate
liability insurance for the directors of the Group
for indemnifying their liabilities arising from the
corporate activities.

From April 2012 onwards, all Directors have been
provided, on a monthly basis, with the Group’s
management information updates to give them
aware of the Group’s affairs and facilitates them
to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.

Professional Development

The Company provides regular updates on the
business development of the Group. The Directors
are regularly briefed on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and
upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
In addition, the Company has been encouraging
the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules,
companies ordinance and corporate governance
practices organized by professional bodies or
chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the Code.
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Corporate Govérnance Report (continued)
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All Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development and refresh
their knowledge and skills during the year. Such
professional development was completed either
by way of attending briefings, conference, forum,
courses and seminars and self-reading which are
relevant to the business or directors’ duties.
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Attendance record of Directors and Committee Members in 2012/13
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Corporate Govérnance Report (continued)
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Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for overseeing the
preparation of annual financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs,
and cash flows for the year. Management provides
the Board with management accounts and updates
on a monthly basis, with a view to giving a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s
performance, financial position, and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, the
Board:

(a) adopted HKFRS, which conform to the
International Financial Reporting Standards in all
material respects;

(b) selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently;

(c) made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates; and

(d) ensured that the financial statements were
prepared on a going concern basis.

In 2012/13, the annual and interim results were
published within 3 months and 2 months respectively
after the end of the relevant periods to provide
shareholders with transparent and timely financial
information.
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Corporate Govérnance Report (continued)
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the system
of internal controls of the Company and for reviewing
its effectiveness. The Board is committed to
implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and
the Group’s assets.

During the year, the Company conducted reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system. The
Audit Committee reviewed the internal control report.
No major issue has been identified during the course
of review.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board,

(b) To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of directors
and senior management of the Group;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Board Committees

The Board has delegated authority to 4 standing
Committees with specific roles and responsibilities.
Their terms of reference and composition are
reviewed and updated regularly to ensure that they
remain appropriate and reflect changes in good
practice and governance. The terms of reference
of each of the Committees are available on the
Company’s website. The attendance record of the
Committee members is shown on page 19 of this
Annual Report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, comprising 4 members: 3
INEDs and 1 executive Director, held 2 meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The principal duties of Audit Committee include:
(i) to oversee the relationship with the Auditor;

(ii) to review the interim and annual financial
statements before publication; and

(iii) to oversee the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Audit
Committee (i) reviewed the reports from the Auditor,
accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, management representation letters,
and management’s response in relation to the
annual results for the year ended 31 March 2012
and the interim results for the six months ended
30 September 2012; and (ii) reviewed the financial
reports for the year ended 31 March 2012 and for
the six months ended 30 September 2012 and
recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The fees in relation to the audit service provided
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditor
of the Company, for the year ended 31 March 2013
amounted to HK$1,302,000 (2012: HK$1,159,000),
and those in relation to non-audit services amounted
to HK$1,037,000 (2012: HK$1,058,000).

Review of 2012/13 Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Audit Committee reviewed the 2012/13
consolidated financial statements in conjunction
with the external auditor of the Company. Based on
this review and discussions with management, the
Audit Committee was satisfied that the consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance
with applicable accounting standards, and fairly
present the Group’s financial position and results for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, comprising 4
members who are 3 INEDs and 1 executive Director,
held 1 meeting for the year ended 31 March 2013.

The principal functions include:

— to recommend to the Board on the Company’s
policies and structure for the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group;

— to determine the remuneration package of all
executive Directors and senior management of
the Group;

— to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to
corporate goals and objectives by the Board from
time to time.
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The primary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate
the personnels by providing fair reward for their
contributions to the Group’s performance. In this
context, the remuneration policy is to set the overall
remuneration package at a competitive level and
in a form that permits additional remuneration to
be earned for high performance over a sustained
period. The remuneration packages are determined
with reference to the time commitment and
responsibilities of each individual, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 30
March 2012 comprising 4 members: 3 INEDs and 1
executive Director.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure specifying the process and
criteria for the selection and recommendation of
candidates for directorship of the Company. The
Nomination Committee will base on the criteria in
the procedure (such as appropriate experience,
personal skills and time commitment, etc) to identify
and recommend proposed candidates to the Board.
During the year, the Nomination Committee did not
hold any meeting.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee currently comprises all the
executive directors of the Company.

It meets as and when required between regular
Board meetings of the Company, and operates as
a general management committee under the direct
authority of the Board. Within the parameters of
authority delegated by the Board, the Executive
Committee sees to the implementation of the
Group’s strategy set by the Board, monitors the
Group’s investment and trading performance,
funding and financing requirements, and reviews the
management performance.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and
that the Board policy and procedures are followed.
Mr. Lee Po Wing, the company secretary of the
Company, has taken not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2013.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
entered into certain transactions with “related
parties” as defined under the applicable accounting
standards. Details of the material related party
transactions are disclosed in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of this Annual
Report.
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SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’
Communication Policy in March 2012 reflecting
mostly the current practices of the Company for the
communication with its shareholders. Information will
be communicated to shareholders through:

continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of
all material information;

— periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports;

— notices of meetings and explanatory materials;

— the annual general meetings and other general
meetings; and

— the Company’s website at www.easyknitenterp.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue and meetings with shareholders. The Board
is grateful to Shareholders for their views, and
welcomes their questions and concerns raised in
relation to the management and governance of the
Group.

Special general meetings may be convened upon
receipt of the written request submitted by any
shareholder(s) of the Company not less than
one-tenth of the share capital of the Company
carrying the rights of voting at general meetings of
the Company. Such written requisition must state
the purposes of the meeting, and signed by the
requisitionist(s) and deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company at 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak
Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (for
the attention of the Company Secretary).
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2012 Annual General Meeting

The Board and the management are committed to
the constructive use of the AGM as a forum to meet
with Shareholders and to hear their view and answer
their questions about the Group and its business.

The Chairman and a majority of other Directors
along with key executives and the external auditor
attended the 2012 AGM and addressed concerns
raised by Shareholders about the resolutions being
proposed and the Company’s business. The Directors
in attendance included those who were chairing the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee on the date of the meeting.

At the 2012 AGM, the Company continued its
practice of proposing separate resolutions on each
substantially separate issue. All resolutions were
passed by way of poll verified by the registrar
scrutineer. The poll voting results are available on
the Company’s website.

Matters resolved at the 2012 AGM

— Received the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2012 together with the
Reports of the Directors and the Auditor

— Election of Messrs. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
and Kan Ka Hon as Directors

— Re-appointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditor of the Company and authorization to the
Directors to fix the Auditor’s remuneration

— Approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to repurchase shares of an amount not
exceeding 10% of the aggregate nominal amount
of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of 2012 AGM
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— Approval of a general mandate for the Directors
to allot and issue of new shares of an amount
not exceeding 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the Company’s issued share capital
as at the date of 2012 AGM

— Approval of the adoption of a new share option
scheme

2013 Annual General Meeting

All Shareholders are encouraged to attend the 2013
AGM and exercise their rights to vote. They are
invited to ask questions related to the business of
the meeting, and will have an opportunity to meet
with the Directors following the conclusion of the
meeting.

Apart from normal business at the 2013 AGM, the
Board has proposed general mandates for the
repurchase of Company’s shares and the issue of
the Company’s shares. Further details of business
to be conducted at the 2013 AGM will be set out in
the circular to Shareholders to be sent together with
this Annual Report and posted on the Company’s
website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company
has not made any changes to its Bye-Laws.
A consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association and Bye-Laws of the Company is
available on the website of the Company.

CHANGES AFTER CLOSURE OF FINANCIAL
YEAR

This report takes into account the changes that have
occurred since 1 April 2013 to the date of approval of
this report.
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Directors’ Réport
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The Directors present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on pages 46 and 47.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of movements in the Company’s share
capital during the year are set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent HK$8,915,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
The details of movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2013 by independent professional
property valuers and the loss arising on changes
in fair value of investment properties, which had
be charged directly to profit or loss, amounted to
HK$30,790,000. Details of these are set out in note
17 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEENIE2EET2013F3A31H L&
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RRABBARFEARAZ B FBENEA
IRk EE27 o
ME -  BERRKE
TR AEEL148,915,000/% T AW E
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company has no reserves available for
distribution at 31 March 2013.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lui Yuk Chu (Deputy Chairman)
Koon Ho Yan Candy

Non-executive director:
Tse Wing Chiu Ricky

Independent non-executive directors:
Kan Ka Hon

Lau Sin Ming

Foo Tak Ching

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 99, Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy and Mr. Foo
Tak Ching will retire from office at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company by rotation
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive directors
as regards their independence to the Company
and considers that each of the independent
non-executive directors is independent to the
Company.

None of the directors has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 12 to 15 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, there was no contract
of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”, there was no contract
of significance between the Company or its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries subsisting during or at the end of the
year, and there was no contract of significance for
the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short
positions of the directors and the chief executives
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Name of director Capacity

EEEH g2

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu

FEH®RLT SR @A (Hti)

Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy Beneficiary of a trust
(note ii) B

BRIt (Aratii) ERXEA

Beneficiary of a trust (note i)

EERIFERETRAERROKEBR
ke

R2013F3A31H  ARAIEERTE
THRABRAR B EEEE LR (T
ERBANBERL([BHFLBER
{5 1) BEXVED) 2Bt - HERHHES
R KIS M EIEBIE35218 R E
AARBFEFEZELMAGE - K
BIMRARZEZETESFR HRIZEST
B ([ZEFH| ) REBRANARRE
BAHMARIMAR AT ([BFT]) 21
ERRBIT

Approximate

Number percentage

of ordinary to issued
shares held ordinary shares
(long position) of the Company
REEE RN
RHEE ERITEE
(##8) BROHNBDLE
179,302,800 43.52%
179,302,800 43.52%

32  Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report



Directors’ Repeft (continueq)

EEERE @

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (continued)

Notes:

(iy 78,566,844 shares and 100,735,956 shares are registered in
the name of and are beneficially owned by Landmark Profits
Limited and Goodco Development Limited respectively, both
companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit International
Holdings Limited (“Easyknit International”’). Sea Rejoice Limited
is interested in approximately 21.95% of the issued share capital
of Easyknit International and it is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk
Chu. Magical Profits Limited (“Magical Profits”) is interested in
approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International. Magical Profits is wholly-owned by Accumulate More
Profits Limited which in turn is wholly-owned by Hang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust
(the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and her family
members other than her spouse).

(i) Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of Magical
2000 Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company
had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been
recorded in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
movements of options during the year are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

EERFTETHAERROREBRR
BHZER 2
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Profits Limited® & # B * & # B The Magical
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES (continued)

No share options were granted to, or exercised
by, the directors during the year. There was no
outstanding option granted to the directors at the
beginning and at the end of the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2013 was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the directors or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, was granted any right
to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any other body corporate nor had
exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, the persons (other than the
directors or the chief executives of the Company)
who had an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EERERNIEFZERN &)

EERNFALEER TRTETMAER
o NAFENRFE  BHERRTE
ERERTZERE-

B EXCFI BT E SN - AR A R E AT
BARINE E2013F3A31BILFER
AR ETT LT AL BER
NRIEENEBE ARSI E ML
ANERBZBDSESFMEZR  ARTE
EERERBHISHEA T ZTRERT
IR AR AR D Al s A A B 52
%%$ﬁ%%%%'ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%
ER o

FTERR

FR2013F3A31H * RIEZEHF LB E K
BIE336IEMEARA NG AETHFE 2 E LM
NiE HFEARGIRDRBBERN 2
BadAB AT (BEERARACEE
THBAERIN 0T -

Approximate

Name percentage to

of ordinary issued ordinary

shares held shares of the

Name of substantial shareholder Notes  Capacity (long position) Company

REEE RARDRERT

IERRER Wiz &% RGHE (FR) EBRGVEDM

Koon Wing Yee I Interest of spouse 179,302,800 43.52%
BkE RfBEa

Landmark Profits Limited I&ii Beneficial owner 78,566,844 19.07%

BakEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Name of substantial shareholder

IERRAR

Goodco Development Limited
EREERRAF

Easyknit International
Magical Profits
Accumulate More Profits Limited

Hang Seng Bank Trustee
International Limited

I-I_an% Seng Bank Limited
EARTERAA

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

BB LBESRITARAA

HSBC Asia Holdings BV

HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)

HSBC Holdings BV

HSBC Finance (Netherlands)

HSBC Holdings plc
ELERER AR

i&iv

FERR @)

Name
of ordinary
shares held

Capacity (long position)
REEE

Gt RH®A (F7)

Beneficial owner 100,735,956

RERBA

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

REHEE 2 R

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

RIEHAE RS

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

RIEHAE B

Trustee 179,302,800

EEA

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

SRR L

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

RIEHAE RS

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

REHAE RS

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

RIEHAE

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

REsAB S

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

XA RS

Interest of controlled corporation 179,302,800

EREIA A

Approximate
percentage to
issued ordinary
shares of the
Company
EARLFERT
EERONAI
24.45%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%

43.52%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

(M

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

36

The 179,302,800 shares related to the same block of shares in
the Company of which 78,566,844 shares and 100,735,956 shares
are respectively registered in the name of and are beneficially
owned by Landmark Profits Limited and Goodco Development
Limited, both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International. Sea Rejoice Limited is interested in approximately
21.95% of the issued share capital of Easyknit International and it
is wholly-owned by Ms. Lui Yuk Chu. Magical Profits is interested
in approximately 36.74% of the issued share capital of Easyknit
International. Magical Profits is wholly- owned by Accumulate More
Profits Limited which in turn is wholly- owned by Hang Seng Bank
Trustee International Limited as trustee of The Magical 2000 Trust
(the beneficiaries of which include Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of
the Company, and her family members other than her spouse).
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, the daughter of Ms. Lui Yuk Chu and a
director of the Company, is deemed to be interested in the shares
by virtue of her capacity as one of the beneficiaries of the Magical
2000 Trust.

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim and Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being
directors of the Company, are also directors of Landmark Profits
Limited, Goodco Development Limited and Easyknit International.
Ms. Koon Ho Yan Candy, being a director of the Company and
Easyknit International.

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, being a director of the Company, is also a
director of Sea Rejoice Limited and Magical Profits Limited.

Hang Seng Bank Trustee International Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hang Seng Bank Limited. Hang Seng Bank Limited
was owned as to approximately 62.14% by The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited was wholly-owned by
HSBC Asia Holdings BV which was a wholly-owned subsidiary
of HSBC Asia Holdings (UK). HSBC Asia Holdings (UK)
was wholly-owned by HSBC Holdings BV which in turn was
wholly-owned by HSBC Finance (Netherlands). HSBC Finance
(Netherlands) was a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC Holdings

plc.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the
Company had not been notified of any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be recorded
in the register kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1)

On 16 June 2011, the Group entered into a
tenancy agreement with Wellmake Investments
Limited as landlord (“Wellmake’, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Easyknit International which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company)
in relation to the renewal of the tenancy of
a premises at Unit A, 7th Floor, Hong Kong
Spinners Building, Phase 6, 481-483 Castle Peak
Road, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(the “Premises”) for a year from 1 May 2011 to
30 April 2012 at a monthly rental of HK$206,800.
Upon that tenancy officially expired on 30 April
2012, the Group held over the tenancy of the
Premises for a period from 1 May 2012 to 31
August 2012 at a monthly rental of HK$206,800.
The aggregate amount of the rental paid by
the Group to Wellmake for the period from
1 May 2011 to 31 August 2012 amounted to
HK$3,308,800. This amount exceeded the cap
amount disclosed in the announcement dated 16
June 2011 by HK$827,200.

On 12 September 2012, Easyknit Worldwide
Company Limited as tenant (an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) entered
into a tenancy agreement with Wellmake as
landlord in relation to the formal renewal of the
tenancy of the Premises for a period of 3 years
from 1 September 2012 to 31 August 2015 at a
monthly rental of HK$208,000. The annual cap of
HK$2,496,000, being the aggregate annual rental
for the Premises based on the monthly rental
of HK$208,000. This formal agreement was the
subject of the Company’s announcement dated
12 September 2012.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they are entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(2) on terms no less favourable to the Company than
those available from independent third parties;
and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has been engaged to
report on the continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its qualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions,
which are extracted below, in respect of the
above-mentioned connected transactions disclosed
by the Company in this annual report in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Rep@rt (continueq)

EEERE @

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
Basis for qualified conclusion

As disclosed in the announcement dated 16
June 2011 made by the Company (the “2011
Announcement”), the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with Wellmake Investments Limited
(“Wellmake”) for renewal of the lease of premises
from 1 May 2011 to 30 April 2012 at a rental of
HK$206,800 per month (the “2011 Agreement”).
Upon expiry of the 2011 Agreement, the Group
continued to occupy the premises and pay rental
of HK$206,800 per month to Wellmake until 31
August 2012 when the Group and Wellmake entered
into another tenancy agreement for lease of the
same premises. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the period of tenancy between
1 May 2012 to 31 August 2012 was a continuation
of the 2011 Agreement, being a holding over.
Notwithstanding this, the amount of rental paid
under the 2011 Agreement and the continuation
thereof exceeded the cap amount disclosed in the
2011 Announcement by HK$827,200, being rental for
the four-month period from 1 May 2012 to 31 August
2012 at a monthly rental of HK$206,800.
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Directors’ Rep@rt (continueq)

EEEHS

(4)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Qualified conclusion

Based on the foregoing, in respect of the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions, the Auditor
confirmed that:

a.

nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the Disclosed Continuing
Connected Transactions have not been approved
by the Company’s board of directors.

nothing has come to our attention that causes us
to believe that the transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions.

with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, except for the
amount of rental paid to Wellmake as described
in the “Basis for qualified conclusion” paragraph,
nothing has come to our attention that causes
us to believe that the Disclosed Continuing
Connected Transactions have exceeded the
maximum aggregate annual value disclosed
in the 2011 Announcement and a previous
announcement dated 12 September 2012 made
by the Company in respect of the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Rep@rt (continueq)

EEERE @

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year, the 5 largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s
purchases and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 42% of the Group’s purchases.

The 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 95% of the Group’s turnover and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 80%
of the Group’s turnover.

None of the directors, their associates and
shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors of the Company, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have
an interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers or
customers.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

There was no purchase, sale and redemption of the
Company’s shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2013.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group
is set up by the executive directors of the Company
on the basis of their performance, experience and
prevailing industry practice.

The emolument of the directors of the Company is
determined by the Board after recommendation from
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
time commitment and responsibilities of individual
directors, the Company’s performance and the
prevailing market conditions.
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Directors’ Repert (.com‘inuec/)
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

The Company has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to directors and eligible employees.
Details of the scheme are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors
as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary
duty of audit committee is to review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal
control systems of the Group. The audit committee
comprised 4 members: 3 independent non-executive
directors and 1 executive director.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 20183.
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Directors’ Repeft (continueq)

EEERE @

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set

out on pages 16 to 28.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING

PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the
end of the reporting period are set out in note 34 to

the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

KWONG JIMMY CHEUNG TIM
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 21 June 2013
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Independent Auditor's Report
B A2 AR

Deloitte.
=20

TO THE MEMBERS OF EASYKNIT ENTERPRISES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Easyknit
Enterprises Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 138,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2013, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (continued)

B AN HRE &)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 June 2013

BRI RATRFARDERGEMBBREFHEE
EEBEMZBERERE - METE ZREFBURIRNZEEN
Z - BREFEARKFRBRNEZESRE P BR
REEERERRL AR - A EZFRARE - %
HMZRZERRAEEMD Y 2R AMBHRERZA
BAMEE  URFHEENEREF  BXFANE
BLABEEZBERERER - BRNERENEES
IRz e RRZAEERAMEL 2 85t 28
Bt URFEGSUBHRR 2 BRIIBIA -

RARE BMFESZERRERARMELE A

Rz EZ B RIRHER -

i3

=z
=8

KMRE  ZERANBHRREBERSVEREE
HEEmMAFHRE SE£EMR2013F3A31H 26
BMRAREEZALEFEZEMEBRERE  VER
REALAGOAZBBRERZ AR -

BH o BERSEHET
BEBHE
54

201356 H21H

NEELEEARAF 01213 FH 45



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEZHEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z£2013F3H31HIFFE

Continuing operations:

Turnover

Cost of goods sold and
services rendered

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Other expenses

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

(Loss) gain arising on changes in
fair value of investment properties

Gain (loss) on fair value changes of
investments held for trading

Gain on fair value change of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible asset

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of property,
plant and equipment

Finance costs — interest on
bank borrowings not wholly
repayable within five years

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from
continuing operations
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Hrst FET FHET
(Restated)

(&251)

7 223,756 286,916
(190,157) (256,138)

33,599 30,778

5,199 4,062
9 (268) (746)
(1,756) (235)
(4,598) (5,291)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (continued)

mETHWER @)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

2013 2012
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat FAET FET
(Restated)
(&51)
Discontinued operations: BRIEEEER
Profit for the year from discontinued REBRIELEER 2
operations REEZm 13 26,617 1,285
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RN BRI R E(
owners of the Company REERM (BE) 4,695 (34,762)
Other comprehensive (expense) income  H# 2 (%) WA
Exchange differences released upon RAESEHT B R AR R IR
deregistration of subsidiaries EHER (14,714) ¥
Exchange differences arising on BEBINEEY
translation of foreign operations MEHZER 1,009 9,132
Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEEM2E (FxX)
for the year WA (13,705) 9,132
Total comprehensive expense for VNG &
the year attributable to AFEERY
owners of the Company 4a%E (9,010) (25,630)
Basic earnings (loss) per share SREAREF (EE) 14
From continuing and REFELER
discontinued operations BRI HK$0.024 HK$(0.979)
From continuing operations RERE RS HK$(0.112) HK$(1.015)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE PR R

At 31 March 2013 20139 3H31H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Loans receivable
Deposits paid for acquisition

of an investment property

Goodwill
Intangible asset

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables

Bills receivable

Investments held for trading

Financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bills payable
Tax payable
Secured bank borrowings

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE

WE - BERRE

BAE
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BAREMES
Bftke
BE

mi AR

MEEE
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KRR

RIEEERE

BRAFEFARSZ

TREE
RITEHEAS

DR ELEEE

mEAE

B 5 R EMENTRIE

ANER
FEHIR
AEMBITER

RBEEFE

BERBRLDAR

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011

Notes HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
Hrst FET FAET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)

(&=51) (&51))

16 141 10,726 9,786
7 612,874 343,157 300,597
18 17,500 - -
- 18,000 -

- = 39,313

- - 21,614

630,515 371,883 371,310

- - 6,155

19 22,996 25,789 64,625
20 153 - -
21 72,904 58,987 58,485
- - 19,327

22 277,411 205,477 181,876
373,464 290,253 330,468

- - 227

373,464 290,253 330,695

23 17,634 24,710 36,129
24 - 3,687 -
6,909 12,615 13,758

25 6,755 - -
31,298 41,012 49,887

342,166 249,241 280,808

972,681 621,124 652,118
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)
mEBBERRR )

At 31 March 2013 F20139F3H31H

31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
et FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E71) (Z51)

Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIBRE 26 12,870 12,888 18,252
Secured bank borrowings BIEEITEE 25 161,932 = il
174,802 12,888 18,252
797,879 608,236 633,866

Capital and reserves BERRIER
Share capital [ 27 4,119 5,507 5,507
Reserves e 793,760 602,729 628,359
797,879 608,236 633,866

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 138 were EFEE/K2013F6A21 B /ERRIEE K F4621388
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 Z&RAHBEHRE  TH TIESHAERESE ¢
June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim Lui Yuk Chu
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EZ EF
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Conso

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z£2013F3H31HIFFE

At 1 April 2011 (originally stated)
Adjustments (note 2)

At 1 April 2011 (restated)

Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

At 31 March 2012 (restated)

Exchange difference released upon
deregistration of subsidiaries
Exchange differences arising on
translation of foreign operations
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year

Issue of new shares (note 27)

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital upon
capital reorganisation (note 27(d))

Set-off contributed surplus against
accumulated losses (note 27(d))

At 31 March 2013 (audited)

R201154A18 (BE25)

28 (422

R2011E4A18 (85])

#EENEEL
EiER
KERER

KER2ERA (R%)
b

201238318 (31)

RESNBATRRS
Bigg

BRI
Bz

AERUH

RERRENRA (RX)
L (Wit2r)
R RANA

RAE R 2 RAER
(Wzt2710))

SARBREHZHER
(Wz2ra)

R2013E3 A3 A ()

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

Property  Accumulated

Share Share Capital Contributed ~ Exchange revaluation (losses)
capital  premium reserve  surplus reserve reserve profits Total

HES Zif
kx  RGEE RAGE  AABE  ENRE  ERRE (BB W L
HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK§'000  HK§000
AT TET AT AL ¥ AT AT TAr
5507 169,872 53,194 299,722 30,689 40,624 28,754 628,362
- - - - - - 5,504 5,504
5507 169,872 53,194 299,722 30,689 40,624 34258 633,866
- - - - 9,132 - - 9,132
L X e = - - (34,762)  (34762)
- - - - 9,132 - (34,762)  (25,630)
5507 169,872 53,194 299,722 39,821 40,624 (504) 608,236
- = - - (14714 = - (14714
- - - - 1,009 - - 1,009
- - - - - - 4,695 4,695
- - - - (13,705) - 4,695 (9,010)
9483 190,425 - - - - - 199,908
- (1,255) - - - - - (1,255)
(10871) - - o8 - . 1 .
- - - (24618) - - 24,618 -
4119 359,042 53,194 285,975 26,116 40,624 28809 797879

50  Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)

MEEREEBR @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

The capital reserve of the Group represents the credit arising from
the reduction of share capital of the Company in March 2004 and
September 2005 and can be applied in the future for distribution to the
shareholders.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the credit arising
from the reduction of share capital of the Company in February 2003,
October 2009 and December 2012, part of which was applied to set
off against accumulated losses of the Company in October 2009
and December 2012. The balance may be utilised by the directors
in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws and all applicable laws,
including to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents the gain
on revaluation of certain leasehold properties and prepaid lease
payments of the Group when these leasehold properties and prepaid
lease payments were transferred to investment properties.

AEE 7 RARERRADAH2004F3 A %2005%9
AREBIBIRANFTES 2 #8 » AEBED K TR -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 & Z£2013F3H31HIFFE

Operating activities
Profit (loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Taxation credit recognised in profit or loss
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation
Amortisation of intangible asset
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value
changes of investments held for trading
Dividend income from listed investments
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible asset
Gain on fair value change of other financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss

Gain on disposal of assets classified as
held for sale
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries
Loss (gain) arising on changes in
fair value of investment properties

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase in bills receivable

Increase in loans receivable

Increase in investments held for trading

Decrease in trade and other payables

(Decrease) increase in bills payable

Cash (used in) from operations

Dividend received from investments held
for trading

Income tax refunded (paid)

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

BEXH
REREN (B1])
AT B IRHE -
ERREERZHETA
MEHA
REKA
E
B AESH
FIEEBREC N TFEE
ZARER (W) BE
THREZBIKA
nx  BERREZ
ERDRERRRD
B EHERAERR

BEAEZEHER
EREY S
BRHEFARRZ
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AYEEP R
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iz (0] NI P 6
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B (Kat)

RAT2EESEHR
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FERD

B 5 REMRKTIRR LD
eSSl
FEMRE g 0
RIFEBREEM

B 5 R AMENFERD
ENER OB ) Em

(AR REEEZRE
FIFEEBEREZCDHWRE

B () e

(BR) RELEXHREFE

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)

]l
4,695 (34,762)
(5,833) (5,908)
(3,288) (2,585)
4,090 -
153 619

- 1,823
(2,063) 17,369
(1,751) (1,126)
(1,047) (1,027)
- 39,313

- 19,791
- (858)
- (1,285)
(20,853) -
30,790 (33,979)
4,893 (2,615)

- 6,155

2,793 31,139
(153) =
(17,500) =
(11,854) (17,871)
(937) (10,545)
(3,687) 3,687
(26,445) 9,950
1,751 1,126
58 (1,340)
(24,636) 9,736
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
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Investing activities
Withdrawal of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
Interest received
Addition of investment properties
Placement of bank deposits with original
maturity of more than three months
Purchase/addition of property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from redemption of
financial assets designated as at
fair value through profit or loss
Settlement of receivable/proceeds from
disposal of assets classified as
held for sale
Purchase of financial assets designated as
at fair value through profit or loss
Deposits paid for acquisition of an
investment property

Net cash (used in) from investing activities

Financing activities
Proceeds from issue of new shares
Bank borrowings raised
Bank borrowings repaid
Interest paid
Transaction costs attributable to issue of
new shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,

represented by bank balances and cash

AR
RRBA=EANHZ
BITHER

BFI &
REREME
MMBA=EAZH
BAFER

Note
(023

BA/RENZE  BENRE

BEEATEHARRY
SRAEZFEIE

KEHEINEREHEEEL 13

WEEY S HOR

BARAYE AR
ZEREBE
BARBME
ZENEE

(AR) REKEEHIREFE

BEEY

BTN FGHR
EERTER
BEFTER
ENHE
EBET P EN

KERMERP 2R FR

e RERRE R INFE
FReRERRE

MEERBH HE

FRBERERARS -
ﬁETT fa ﬁ% &E/QL$

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)

]l

67,049 -
3,288 2,585
(261,422) (2,243)
(67,049) -
(8,915) (168)

- 50,185

- 8,282
- (30,000)
- (18,000)
(267,049) 10,641
199,908 =
174,000 =
(5,313) -
(4,090) -
(1,255) -
363,250 -
71,565 20,377
205,477 181,876
369 3,224
277,411 205,477
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GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
As at 31 March 2013, Easyknit International Holdings Limited
(“Easyknit International”) owns 43.52% (31 March 2012: 72.36%)
of the ordinary shares of the Company and held the same
percentage of voting rights in the Company. Taking into account
the relevant facts and circumstances, particularly the size of
Easyknit International’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of other vote holders, the Company
has been regarded as a subsidiary of Easyknit International
under the new definition of control and the related guidance set
out in HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA). As such, the Company’s parent and ultimate holding
company is Easyknit International, which is also incorporated in
Bermuda. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”) which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) have applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.

HKFRSs that become effective for the year:

Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKFRS 7

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets
Financial instruments: Disclosures - Transfers
of financial assets

HKFRSs that have been early adopted for the year:

Amendments to HKAS 1 As part of the annual improvements to HKFRSs

2009 - 2011 cycle issued in 2012

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Consolidated financial statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure of interests in
other entities: Transition guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangement
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in associates and joint ventures

Except as described below, the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

i3
=
=

RAEE - KAw ki

FA ¥ 18 ﬁé‘éﬂ“*TZiS%,M%ﬁ
3] (FE/%,JH%& 28 1)

SN WNCING RN S

B CEAEESHMARRMIATHERE
CHPASE R

RAFEEM 2 BEBWHHREER

FRaERR125: (BFX)

BEMBREEUSETH
(B71%)

ETHA  WORBEE
TRIA: BE-oREE
g2

RAFERERA B BN GREER

BEGHENZES (BFA)

BB REENZE10%
BAMBREENENRR
BANBREENZ 125
(BFTA)

EAUMBREENE10R

BANBREENE 1R

BB BIEERIE 125

BAGHERETH
(R2011EE(ERT)

ARG ER|FE28%:
(R0 EE(ERT)

2012 B {EA2009F —
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REMEEER /RS :
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial statements”
(as part of the Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
cycle issued in June 2012)

Various amendments to HKFRSs were issued in June 2012, the
title of which is “Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2009 — 2011
cycle)” The effective date of these amendments is annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013.

In current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
amendments to HKAS 1 in advance of the effective date (annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013).

HKAS 1 requires an entity that changes accounting policies
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or
reclassification to present a statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period (third statement of financial
position). The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity is
required to present a third statement of financial position only
when the retrospective application, restatement or reclassification
has a material effect on the information in the third statement
of financial position and that related notes are not required to
accompany the third statement of financial position.

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments
to HKAS 12 “Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets” for
the first time, which has resulted in a material effect on the
information in the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 1 April 2011. In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group has therefore presented a third statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2011 without the related notes.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets”

The Group has applied for the first time the amendments to
HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” in the
current year. Under the amendments, investment properties
that are measured using the fair value model in accordance
with HKAS 40 “Investment property” are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale for the purposes of measuring
deferred taxes, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China
(the “PRC”) and Hong Kong, which are measured using the fair
value model. For the purpose of application of the amendments
to HKAS 12, the directors of the Company reviewed the Group’s
investment properties portfolios as at 1 April 2012 and concluded
that the Group’s investment properties situated in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$179,000,000 (1 April 2011: HK$135,000,000)
are not held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, and that the presumption set
out in the amendments to HKAS 12 is not rebutted.

On the other hand, the Group has rebutted the presumption in
respect of the Group’s remaining investment properties situated
in the PRC amounting to HK$164,157,000 as at 1 April 2012 (1
April 2011: HK$165,597,000) as such properties are depreciable
and are held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Accordingly, the adoption
of amendments to HKAS 12 has no impact on the deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the Group’s investment properties in the
PRC.

FERAHEREEI2EBYER
HEA ([FEMBREED]) 2

/N

BB ERE 125 (15572) [BEHE - W
HHEE ]

RAEE AREERERB B ENF125
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K RREBEBGHEREI0% [REVE] KA
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AEBMEEMECAREAREME ([HE])
MES KAATEBEERNE - ATEAE
BEEERFE125 (BRI A)  EEEEMN2012
FAAIAREEMREMERS  URABLE
B A BB 2 E Y% S5 A179,000,0007% 7T
(20114F4 818 : 135,000,00078 7T ) I FEIZ GRS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 “Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets” (continued)

As a result of the application of the amendments to HKAS 12, the
Group does not recognise any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of the investment properties in Hong Kong as the Group is
not subject to any income taxes on disposal of these investment
properties. Previously, the Group recognised deferred taxes
on changes in fair value of these investment properties on the
basis that the entire carrying amounts of these properties were
recovered through use.

The amendments to HKAS 12 have been applied retrospectively.

Summary of the effect of the above change in accounting
policy

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above on
the results for the current and prior years by line items presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is as
follows:

Decrease in taxation charge Rl
Net decrease in loss for the year REFEERDFE

2.

EE%%&@%%ZE%%%%
£ B ([FBAMBEREED]) »
ERB MR Z128 (BT5)[EEHE - WE
EEE ()

AREREEGENE125 (BFIX) - X&H
TEERABEREVEAAFEEEIMELL
EMRELERE - KRR EEZSERENERA
SETRRNEAMEHAR - B AREEK
ZEDF 2 BREERBEAKRE 2 ERHZ
EREMERRTEELYEDELTHIEA -

ARG ERE125 (BFIA) CHEPER -
LRETBERE AR

e RREHENAFRANFLRA2EKE
RZFEERREB ZFEMT -

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2,333 7,968
2,333 7,968
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above change in accounting
policy (continued)

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above
on the financial positions of the Group as at the end of the

2. EH
XA ([BFEMBHREER

LB BREE 2 H BB (E)

%ﬁi( ,?é‘é{l“*TZE % 5

1

TS BHREHHARE M BHRRAERE

— A B FEE LR - B1201263A318 2

=
TE

immediately preceding financial year, i.e. 31 March 2012, is as (I
follows:
As at
31 March 2012 As at
(originally 31 March 2012
stated) (restated)
R20124F R20124F
3A31H Adjustments EISE
(REZF) R (&251)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE (26,360) 13,472 (12,888)
Total effects on net assets HEEFEZ
2 E (26,360) 13,472 (12,888)
Accumulated losses, 2EEE - HER
total effects on equity L B2 (13,976) 13,472 (504)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Summary of the effect of the above change in accounting
policy (continued)

The effect of the change in accounting policy described above
on the financial positions of the Group as at the beginning of the

AHFERKET2EBY B R
%A (FE,%,\M%*& 28 ) #)

i3
las
=
LRBHBEBD B (F)

e BOR B AREE 2 B AR L B
AR - BI2011E4 1B ZZEmT ¢

comparative period, i.e. 1 April 2011, is as follows:

As at
1 April 2011 As at
(originally 1 April 2011
stated) (restated)
20114 20114
4710 Adjustments 4°1H
(R%25) THE (EZ751)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE (23,756) 5,504 (18,252)
Total effects on net assets HEEFELZ
EHTE (23,756) 5,504 (18,252)
Accumulated profits, Zatm A - HEs
total effects on equity e 28,754 5,504 34,258

FEREEGERE125 (BFTAX) BRAREN
RZEERBASHAERRAHARDRIELE
EBUARFERLEE 2 BRENANIE00.01
BT (20125 : BREABRMA0.2287T) °

The application of amendments to HKAS 12 in respect of
deferred tax on investment properties has resulted in an increase
in basic earnings per share of HK$0.01 (2012: a decrease
in basic loss per share of HK$0.22) from continuing and
discontinued operations as well as continuing operations for the
year.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities” HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. To meet the definition
of control in HKFRS 10, all of the three criteria, including (a)
an investor has power over an investee, (b) the investor has
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the investor has the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns,
must be met. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities. Much more guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has
control over an investee. In particular, detailed guidance has
been established in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor that
owns less than 50 per cent of the voting shares in an investee

2.

ERFTEREEIT 2BEBHBER
HEA ((BEMBREEN]) )

BB REERE10% [HEHHHE]

BEVISRELERF105MA BB E]F27
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BREEEMEBL TR AENREHSR tA
BB EREEDFE105E HE AL
%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬂ%Z&mEhfxﬁw%Zhﬁ
EEMEBATRAZEFEEAER - BHIME
ERBEMBREHRIRERTEAZHE -

has control over the investee. For example, in assessing whether H G EERTEE R B H 2 ZRELA
an investor with less than a majority of the voting rights in an BERNIZER & %Eﬁwiﬁﬁt/ﬁtﬂu 51058 &3k
investee has a sufficiently dominant voting interest to meet the REEEBEMBERBEEREN  BHEREEMN

power criterion, HKFRS 10 requires the investor to take into
account all relevant facts and circumstances including the size
of the investor’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders, rights
arising from other contractual arrangements, and any additional
facts and circumstances, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

%Z&m%ﬁ%‘l*ﬁ”ﬁﬁ”‘ﬁmhmﬁé%ﬁ}\za‘ym
BABRBEDHREE  BEMWAORFELZE
o AREAEAEERER (BRRABERR
RELZBREFA) -

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group has early R2013FE3A3IHILEER ' REBRIREER
applied HKFRS 10 in order to bring the accounting policies in BB EHRELERE105E - FTBE I HEAE

line with Easyknit International. In the opinion of the directors,
the application of HKFRS 10 has no significant impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests in other entities”

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates
and/or unconsolidated structured entities. The application of
HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the wholly owned
subsidiaries (note 33). As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group
did not have interests in any non-wholly owned subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates or unconsolidated structure entities.

BER—% EEZR5 BERAEPBREENE
10 EAKE AN BHRRLBEATE -

BB BHERRE 125 [ REMER R ZKE |

E\i%ﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁﬁllﬁmﬁﬁi% T ¥ 55 £ A1 37 78 A
REEWBAR - KRZH B2 QA K 3k
Tmyuﬁg\_%ﬁ*/g ZEEE"EFH%/%WUJ%#&i’E
125 B2 ENB ARGV EHRERTHE
B 2H 2 HE (M733) - Eé2013¢)§22o12¢3
A31H ' AEBRBEEMIELEMBAR « £H
ZHE éﬁﬁﬂﬁyii?éﬁéﬁa%zm/w
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62

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

HK(IFRIC*) - INT 20

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 -
2011 cycle, except for the amendments
HKAS 1

Disclosures - Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and
transition disclosures®

Investment entities?

Financial instruments®
Fair value measurement!
Employee benefits'

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities?

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-
financial assets?

Stripping costs in the production phase of
a surface mine'

Levies?

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee.

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2014.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2015.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2012.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
amended in 2010 includes the requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

E %t %WﬂZé%%ﬁﬁ

A

ZH ([BRAMBREER ] @)
EEGEERERZTEREEBITZEEY
BHREER (&)

BB BREEREIN [HT A

R2009F B 2 BB T ISR E LB F05E 5| A&
BEESBRITEZHATE - R2010FLEFT 2
EAMBREEFIFBREREBEZIER
D+EL}\&HX/ﬁEEH Z%E;E o

ERMBREEAFESR 2 EBREIRIT

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

. EEUBRTEAEBATBELE
RIZ39% (£ BT & : BR

e
2 BER

ZAAERRAERMEELRGBRBHKAN

FATEE - AREME - BHRKES

#

ReREZEBEARNARS  URAHR
EREEREEAERHAEELEMESE
FEZEBERE  —RREREHHRKE
HRAFE - AR MERRERBARE

HRERERPARILAFETE 150

18

BEREMBHELRFIR  BERAELLT
AHEEENREME2ERAZIIBARE
(UFEFEER) cHRATEES M~

RENBENEDBREWA

KEBEXREEARAR 2012/13 FR

63



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

2

64

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows: (continued)

e The most significant effect of HKFRS 9 regarding the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities relates
to the presentation of changes in the fair value of a financial
liability (designated as at fair value through profit or loss)
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability.
Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS
39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss is presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2015, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have no significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
This standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy currently
required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover
all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 April 2013 and is not likely to affect the
amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to be
made in the other comprehensive income section such that items
of other comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in future accounting periods.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved when the
Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has all
the following:

o power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

o exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

* the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its
returns

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote
holders or other parties;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

*  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Company has, or does not have, the current ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where they
satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their fair values
can be measured reliably. The cost of such intangible assets is
their fair value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHBE @)
(continued)
Goodwill R

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently whenever there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
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of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from
the date of classification.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group, which
comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes
from the rest of the Group, and has been disposed of, or is
classified as held for sale, and either (a) represents a separate
major line of business or geographical area of operations, (b) is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations or (c) is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report

3.

FESHBE 2

BEHEXRRDEE

WEEEDES - BLERFMFEBRKEER
WE - FRBEEIHERS BRI BFEH
B BHERAALBLERZFRDEE (I
EHE) RRAHNEEER - 7 RIENEZ
&t - EEEBUAFRER D BAHEA B —F
NEBERERRTRHEZHLE

BIVBKERE 2 ERDAE (RBEEA)
BAZZ NEEEREATERLERAZRE
BIEHIE -

EETI - F S

EREKEREARSEE R —@AKEES - 5
EBLEMBREMNS EFRCEERRSE
MEREAEBEESRI DB E D R HEHT
ERERE © Ra)R—RENIEXBILEE
& (D)ARE-BEHINLE-RENETERK
F IR L E B S (c)B— AEBEMKE M
BLAE -

W R

Wa e W RERREZAFEAERAEER
BrAEmEERRBRE R NREHEE
ARABAR RIS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs not attributable to qualifying assets are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment (other than construction in
progress) less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHHBE #)
(continued)
Investment properties REYE

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values using the
fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Investment properties
under construction are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Any difference between the fair value of the
investment properties under construction and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of that item is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. The carrying amount is arrived at after taking into
account the reversal of any previously recognised accumulated
impairment loss to profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the property, plant and equipment at the date when
impairment is reversed does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into two categories
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL’) and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHR w
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) eMIA (B
Financial assets (continued) EHEE (&)
Effective interest method EEHFE

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL, including equity linked investments,
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising from
re-measurement recognised directly in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit and
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, bills receivable, loans
receivable and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFHEE @
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) S@MIR (&)
Financial assets (continued) LHEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets THEERE

Financial assets, other than financial assets at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments; or

U it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables and loans receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivables, or loans receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEEHR w
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) eMIA (B
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued) THEE (&)
Financial liabilities EHRE

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, bills
payable and secured bank borrowings) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESHBEE »
(continued)
Taxation HE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner
as to how the properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHBE @)
(continued)
Leasing R

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
year, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by
the PRC government or the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management has reviewed the
Group’s investment properties portfolios and concluded that
while the Group’s investment properties located in Hong Kong
are depreciable, they are not held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising from investment
properties located in Hong Kong, the management determined
that the presumption that investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered through sale is not rebutted.

For the Group’s investment properties located in the PRC,
the management concluded that they are depreciable and
are being held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation arising
from investment properties located in the PRC, the management
determined that the presumption that investment properties
measured using the fair value model are recovered through sale
is rebutted.

4.
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86

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year.

Impairment allowance on loans receivable

The amount of the impairment of loans receivable is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in estimating the expected
discounted future cash flows. If the actual future cash flows are
less than the original estimated cash flows of loans receivable,
additional allowances would be required.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 25, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issues and raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

Categories of financial instruments

6. eI HE

a. SWMIAZESR

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Investments held for trading HIEBEERE 72,904 58,987
Loans and receivables (including cash B % e WK IR
and cash equivalents) (BREARERES)
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 REMERRIE 15,457 19,818
- Bills receivable - BERE 153 e
— Loans receivable — Bl E 17,500 =
— Bank balances and cash —RITEHBRIRE 277,411 205,477
383,425 284,282
Financial liabilities SRERE
Amortised cost B SHACAR
Trade and other payables B 5 R H At fE [ 5/IE 5,268 7,971
Bills payable NS = 3,687
Secured bank borrowings BIEHRTEE 168,687 -
173,955 11,658

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments
held for trading, trade and other receivables, bills receivable,
loans receivable, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bills payable and secured bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

b. MEEMEEERRER

AEEZIZCRITABERIEEERE
o REMRKFR  BURE  BRE
P RITEBREES  BEHRAMENRK
B ENRBEMEERRRTER - Z5E2R
TAZFFEERBERHEEMER - M&EFE
BT AWKz RRIANEEZERR 2 BR
RlEHmT - EEEEELERZFRAR -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

88

b.

6. @M ITH #»

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEAMEBEERKE (&)
(continued)
Market risk 5
(i) Currency risk (i) EEEE
Certain subsidiaries of the Group have foreign HERASBEETHBAR  BRUEER
currency sales or purchases denominated in currencies BN HERBEMBANETIE -
other than their functional currencies, which expose BEAREEAZIINERER - £95%
the Group to foreign currency risk. Approximately 95% (20124 : 98%) 2 ASEHERNE
(2012: 98%) of the Group’s sales are denominated EERB BB UINERIE =
in currencies other than the functional currency of NomMmE BEANEEER 28
the group entities making the sale, whilst almost all SH5IE -
purchases are denominated in the group entities’
functional currency.
The carrying amount of the group entities’ foreign RBERR  UEEEB NS
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary ANz INEDEMEREERER S
liabilities at the end of the reporting period is as BZEREERAT
follows:
Liabilities Assets
=l &
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARE - - 16 {7
HKD Vow = = 28 28
United States dollars (‘USD”) %7t 93 85 78,778 55,350
Euro (“EUR”) BT = = - 10,199
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

£WMIE»

Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERAMEBEERKRE (&)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) TS ERE (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) EXEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE T

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of AEEEBRBEFERARK

RMB, HKD, USD and EUR.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in functional currency
of the relevant group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2012: 5%) represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity

T~ ETLREUT °

TERFANEEEB 2 ER LA
BN FHE K B2 (5% 2 B E ° 5%
(20125 : 5%) A& 12 [E £ [E % 1] A2
GHEH TG BEAEINERE
PUNEHE 2 mATREMIER - I
RERFARE BRI E R 2 5%%

analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency Bo NIEERTEREEERE 2D
denominated monetary items and adjusts their BE B K AERA YN B2 ([B5% T8 B Y i
FEMKEERD - MEBEE LY
BB BBINEFHES% - ISR HE

mEKEERERZZE - T NII&
HEEREH -

translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit or a decrease in loss where
functional currency of the relevant group entities
weaken 5% against the relevant foreign currency.
For a 5% strengthening of functional currency of the
relevant group entities against the relevant foreign
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the loss or profit, and the amounts below would be
negative.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TMIE »
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MEAMEBEERKE (&)
(continued)
Market risk (continued) mEE R (&)
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) EXmEE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRE DT (&)
RMB Impact HKD Impact USD Impact EUR Impact
AREZEE BrZ¥ EnzEe Brz¥g
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
fér FEr  TET TAr TArn AT FArm TET

90

Increase in profit b bl
(2012: decrease (2012 : 518
in loss) F) 1 3 1

3,285 2,307 = 426

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy to eliminate the currency exposures.
However, the management monitors the related foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposures should the need
arise.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. IR @

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERAMEBEERKRE (&)
(continued)

Market risk (continued) TS ERE (&)

(i) FIEE

(ii)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s primary interest rate risk relates to its
bank balances and bank borrowings. The interest rates
and terms of repayment of the loans of the Group are
disclosed in note 25. The Group is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loans
receivable. The Group has not used any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to such interest rate
risk, however, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary action
when significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial
liabilities is detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“‘HIBOR”) arising from
bank borrowings.

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for
non-derivative instruments as referred to above at the
end of the reporting period and the stipulated change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the reporting period in the
case of instruments that have floating rates. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

ES

AEBAZBRRITERLBITREE
TEMEER - ARBERZFXRR
EEBARDNH T25HKE - REE T
AZBARESRKRER D FEMNE
R - XEBYRBEREIMAITES
RS ZA ZRR - AW BEEE
ETRERNE@E LKEBERY
AEAFERRERNER T RMEME
2178 -

AKERERABZMERRERA
WEeRnBESRRERE —HRH
o ARBZRERMEEAREIES
PRERTEEZEBRITAERE
([BBBRTAERL ) K -

2

T RERRE

&

5

WA 2 SRS 5 47 TR A E BT
s BB S IE T T A RN 240
ERELRTATANREMET
% - SOMEZEHIEMAD 2 AHA
TEEBABERFEARRAEE
BETERE 2 THARED -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

92

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Interest rate sensitivity (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or
lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March
2013 would decrease/increase by HK$695,000. This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate borrowings.

The bank balances are excluded from sensitivity
analysis as the management of the Group considered
that the interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

No sensitivity analysis has been presented for the year
ended 31 March 2012 as the interest rate risk is not
significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments held for trading and financial assets
designated as at FVTPL. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted in
the Stock Exchange of issuers operating in banking
and finance industry sector. In addition, the Group has
appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the
need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) Other price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the investments held for trading and fair
value of financial assets designated as at FVTPL had
been 5% (2012: 5%) higher/lower, post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/decrease
by HK$3,044,000 (2012: decrease/increase in post-tax
loss by HK$2,462,000) as a result of the changes in
fair value of investments held for trading and financial
assets designated as at FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 March 2013 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In view of the nature of business, the Group targets on
a focused market. As at 31 March 2013, the Group has
concentration of credit risk in the trade receivables balance
amounting to HK$13,622,000 (2012: HK$14,391,000)
derived from the five largest customers with good credit
history in garment industry. There is also concentration
risk in respect of the Group’s turnover during the year
ended 31 March 2013 amounting to HK$179,976,000 (2012:
HK$255,249,000) out of total turnover of HK$223,756,000
(2012: HK$286,916,000) was made to one single customer.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has reviewed the financial position, liquidity and
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivable
regularly to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

6. eMITH (%

HHEAREZER/RIE (£)

g (%)
(i) EERmER (&)
FRENN

AT SRED T RREN RS HRFA
AR EFBERARET

WHERHEEBRE RIZATFEFTA
BEZeBMEEZEBER LA /TR
5% (20125 : 5%) ' FHIEEEHRER
BATEFABRZZEREEQATE
2B EHE F201353H318 1t
F [E B8 m A8 05 3,044,000
AL (2012F : BigBEBRL /HEn
2,462,000/87C) °

EEmRAE

M4 5 RaEBITN2013FE3 A31 B AR A
BERReMEEZRT  AIREBEMAEZ
TaEERRAKRE VBRI RN 2%
EEEZRABE - REBEEMS - &5
BASHRTIZRE R - R2013F3A31H -
AEBERENKKTEERFEELHEZ
AREFZE 5 EKFRIE 513,622,000
BT (20124 : 14,391,000/8 L) 2 £ H 1=
ERK - BEAEEHZ=2013F3A31H
FEZEXBNAREE—RFEZEPER
179,976,000 7T (20124 : 255,249,000
B IL) 44 ¥ 58 5223,756,000/8 7T (2012
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

94

b.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group also had concentration of credit risk in relation
to loans receivable from a few borrowers amounting to
HK$17,500,000 at 31 March 2013 (2012: nil). The largest
borrower of the Group by itself accounted for approximately
57% (2012: nil) of the Group’s loans receivable at 31
March 2013. At 31 March 2013, all loans receivables are
neither past due nor impaired and the borrowers are
assessed to have satisfactory credit quality with reference
to financial background and creditability of individual
borrowers, subsequent settlement and payment history
of the borrowers. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management has reviewed the recoverable amounts of
the loans receivable regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on loans receivable is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
majority of the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies and banks with good reputation.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group has available
unutilised bank loan facilities of HK$60,000,000 (2012:
HK$60,000,000).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TR TR »
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies b. MERBEEEERERE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) FHELEE (&)
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRANAEE 2 2RB R FBE O H
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been HARR o WRDIRAEEAIHERNHZHF
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial IMAzERMEBERTRESREINT - &
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group ANBEFNERAERERE

can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Liquidity tables mEELE
More than
3 months Total
but less undiscounted
Effective ~ Lessthan  than 1 year Over  cash flows Carrying
interestrate ~~ 3months  EB3(EA Tyear  FiTERE amount

RBAZ  ORER  EAME B RENE KEE
%  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOO  HK$OO0
% TAL TAL 23 TRL TEL

2013 2013F
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTE2BAE
Trade and other payables 85 REMENTE - 5,268 = = 5,268 5,268
Secured bank borrowings ERRRAEE 2.1 2,821 8,464 205,322 216,607 168,687
8,089 8,464 205,322 221,875 173,955
2012 2012%
Non-derivative financial liabiliies (7448 E%
Trade and other payables B REMENTE = 7971 = = 7971 7971
Bills payable ERZE - 3,687 - - 3,687 3,687
11,658 - - 11,658 11,658
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

c. Fair value

96

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are
determined as follows:

e The fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

e  The fair value of financial assets designated as at
FVTPL are determined based on valuation provided
by the counterparty financial institutions for equivalent
instruments.

. The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TMITE »
¢. Fair value (continued) c. AY¥E®#E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated REEHBNREXBERZ A FENE (F)

statement of financial position (continued)

Level 1 and total

F1RREE
HK$ 000
FETT
2013 20134
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFTAERZERERE
Investments held for trading RIEEBERE 72,904
2012 20124
Financial assets at FVTPL BATLEFAERZEREE
Investments held for trading BEEERE 58,987
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the BIRRFE2F 2 BUWRERAFERBEEEE
current and prior years. % o
7. TURNOVER 7. BXH
Turnover represents the aggregate of the amounts received or EEBEFANMGRIMREFHEFANERCE
receivable for goods sold, net of discounts and sales related mIHEZEWS RS  REEEYELAE
taxes, rental income from property leasing and interest income WARKREERBME A SRALE - REER
from loan financing during the year. An analysis of the Group’s BERELEEB EFEAMET
turnover from its continuing operations is as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of goods EMEE 211,770 280,918
Rental income WA 11,780 5,998
Interest income from loan financing RKEERRE ZF WA 206 =
223,756 286,916
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. TEEH
Information reported to the Group’s chief executive officer, being BRI RS HBRBAGEME » EREAER
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?), for the purposes JTERERRE ([TELERRE]) BET
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance HEH2ER  DEPRERRTHRBERE
focuses on types of goods delivered or services provided. This B o WM AR BE - BEEERNILRA
is also the basis of organisation, whereby the management has BAREBEMRRGZEZR -
chosen to organise the Group around differences in products and
services.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Group’s operating and reportable segments from continuing
operations under HKFRS 8 are: (a) garment sourcing and
exporting, (b) property investment, (c) investment in securities
and (d) loan financing. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which principally
engaged in loan financing, commenced business. The CODM
decided to review the performance of loan financing for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance assessment.
Accordingly, a new segment for loan financing is presented.

PEER 7

RBEEBHBREENEST  AEERFELE
EBIEERERHTA - (QFEREAKK
L)MERE - )EHFRERAEFRE - NE
F2013F3AALEE  ARElz—RAEEH
EEFRECZENBARIFIREE - TELE
REEREREERME KRR - f’EFjéﬁn@E
REBRFE22Z - Rt 25— (B2 L E R
ﬁo

Segment revenue and results TEEXER¥E
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results BREFBELEEB  REREBRD WO AE
from its continuing operations by operating and reportable BloExBRERENT
segment:
For the year ended 31 March 2013 B F2013F3531HILFE
Continuing operations: HEREXRY
Garment
sourcing and
exporting Property  Investment Loan
RER  investment in securities financing  Eliminations Consolidated
HOR% NERE BERE EXRE s &e
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FE7 FEr FEr FEr FiEr FEr
Turnover EZE
External AR 211,770 11,780 - 206 - 223,756
Segment (loss) profit 8 (B8) &7 (1,601) (23,018) 7472 126 - (17021)
Other income EfA 3,448
Other gains and losses HfhmRER (268)
Other expenses il (1,756)
Reversal of impairment loss % BER
recognised in respect of property, RELERED
plant and equipment HEFERE 1,047
Finance costs BEHA (4,09)
Unallocated corporate expenses EAZ RAIFR (3,351)
Loss before taxation RHAIEE
(continuing operations) (REmELE) (21,991)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7EEN
Segment revenue and results (continued) DTEEXEREE ()
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B F201243A31 HILEE
Continuing operations: REREERY
Garment

sourcing and
exporting Property  Investment
#ER  investment in securities  Eliminations Consolidated
B A NERE BHERE HisH Ha
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHET FATL FAT

(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E51))
Turnover BEE
External AN 280,918 5,998 - - 286,916
Segment (loss) profit 78 (BR) &7l (61,799) 36,827 (1471) © (39,683)
Other income Hitg A 2,937
Other gains and losses Hiles R EE (746)
Other expenses HifY (235)
Reversal of impairment ME - BEK
loss recognised in respect R EHER
of property, plant and REEE
equipment | 1,027
Unallocated corporate expenses  EHfl v AFHS (5,255)
Loss before taxation BEAIEE
(continuing operations) (e E) (41,955)
The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments Rt SRS 0 RERERD P2 ST B R EK
are the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in EFveABERRE - 2R (BiE) &S
note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the result incurred by oS ERRENREMWA - MR
each segment without allocation of other income, other gains and BE Bt ¥ BELRREZEEZR
losses, other expenses, reversal of impairment loss recognised BEEEED  mEKARESRARIMY o i#
in respect of property, plant and equipment, finance costs and RENRAAEBZ FBREREE  ERERED
unallocated corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to e R RIBT(E 2 RE -

the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7¥ER @
Segment revenue and results (continued) TEEXEREE (&)

RAEE  FELEAREATHETEMERE
Dz P BEERREREWEZATEE
IJH:  BHE E2012F3A31BILFE 2 MER

In the current year, the CODM decided to include the fair value
change of investment properties in measuring the segment result
of the property investment segment. Accordingly, segment profit

100

of property investment for the year ended 31 March 2012 has

been restated.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

B2 AEan e

PHEEREE

REELRERVBANMAGBEZEERAR

by operating and reportable segment: W

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
(Restated)
(E51)

Segment assets DHEE
Garment sourcing and exporting PREE K H AR 20,952 24,283
Property investment MERE 705,339 466,959
Investment in securities BHIE 72,909 58,990
Loan financing EXmE 17,588 -
Total segment assets DENEEAAR 816,788 550,232
Unallocated bank balances and cash BORRTEHRERE 186,936 111,512
Others ﬁ{m 255 392
Consolidated assets HABE 1,003,979 662,136

Segment liabilities 2PHEE
Garment sourcing and exporting FEREORK 5,692 11,675
Property investment ES 8 6,248 4,298
Total segment liabilities HEELEE 11,940 15,973
Secured bank borrowings BEBRITEE 168,687 -
Unallocated NI 25,473 37,927
Consolidated liabilities mAEAE 206,100 53,900
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ﬁﬁﬁm (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) THEEREE (£)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and mABERRERESESBEZERAEME

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating and reportable - REBB=EAINEZETENR  RORERT
segments other than bank deposits with original maturity ERRRAEREERERDBERGHACE
of more than three months, unallocated bank balances and BN TEEEEIERKLENERD L -

cash and assets used jointly by operating and reportable

segments.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable - BRPRECHEEBERLERZ®RH P
segments other than current and deferred tax liabilities and REEz BB BEEBEAEELER
liabilities for which operating and reportable segments are EWAE °
jointly liable.

Other segment information Hitn BER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 B F2013%F3A31 HILFE

Continuing operations: BEQEER .

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or BBREEHES I BRI N HEECSR

segment assets:

Garment
sourcing and
exporting Property  Investment Loan
RER  investment in securities financing  Unallocated Total

BKIHA NERE E5RE ERRE #IE BE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr 7 FEr 7 7 FEr

Capital additions BRAE 54 270,283 - - - 210,337
Depreciation it 3 187 6 - - 10 153
Gain on investments held for trading ~ #EEERE 2 UiE - - (5,758) - = (5,758)
Loss arising on change in fairvalue ~ BENEZ ATE

of investment properties 295k - 30,790 - - - 30,790
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)

102

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Continuing operations:

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or

segment assets:

Capital additions

Amortisation

Depreciation

Loss on investments held
for trading

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible asset

Gain arising on change in fair
value of investment properties

Garment
sourcing and

PTEER @)

Hiten BEH (#)

HE2012F3731HILFE

REREERY

BEEEH

[

HESBRARASBEAEZLE

exporting Property  Investment
REN  investment in securities  Unallocated Total
FKRE A MERE ERRE N Bg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FET FET FET
BARE 39 20,372 = = 20,411
B 1,823 - - - 1,823
& 496 8 - 115 619
FEEERECER
- - 16,677 - 16,677
BB ERR
EEE 39,313 - = - 39,313
RVEELERR
HEEE 19,791 - - - 19,791
REMEZATE
Il - (33,979) - - (33,979)
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers based on the shipment location of customers and

information about its non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments) by geographical location of the assets are detailed

8. PEER #

g5 38

RREFBELLEEB I REFPERME D 2K
SEZEXERREEZAEREE D ZIFRE
BE (TOESRIA) BHOT :

below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIREFZEEE FREBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FE FR&T
Australia BN 1,857 1,126 - —
Europe B 21,309 14,548 - -
Hong Kong B8 7,699 2,988 428,965 197,215
PRC 8 4,288 3,010 184,050 174,668
The United States of America E3E 187,307 265,169 - -
Others Hih 1,296 75 - -
223,756 286,916 613,015 371,883
Information about major customers IREFZEH

Revenue from continuing operations from customers of the
corresponding years contributing over 10% of the total sales of
the Group are as follows:

Customer A! EEA

BRAEEHERTI0%A L2 REFBLER
BRPZBFREFRENT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
179,976 255,249

L Revenue from garment sourcing and exporting.

T RARBRHAKRKZERE -
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HitzE R EE
Continuing operations: FESEER
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Net exchange loss BB 5B R TR (268) (746)
10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EEREEZME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments (a) EEESME2EH
Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for HE2013F3AALEFEARAIESHS
the year ended 31 March 2013 are as follows: AT :
Kwong Tse
Jimmy Koon Wing

Cheung  LuiYuk  HoYan Chiu KanKa LauSin  Foo Tak
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Hon Ming Ching Total
BRA EBER  BEUR  @kE ERE  HEH  @ER L
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEr FEr TEr TEr  TErn  TEr  FErn  TEX

Fees BEHd - - - 120 120 120 120 480
Other emoluments ~ EffiE{4
- Salaries and )

other benefits H 28t 900 1,23 312 - - - - 2,48
- Contributions to~~~ — iR RiEA|

retirement benefit HEGS

schemes - 15 15 - - - - 30
Total directors’ EEY Gt

emoluments 900 1,251 327 120 120 120 120 2,958
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Information regarding directors’ emoluments

(continued)

10. EEREEZHME @)

Details of emoluments to the directors of the Company for

the year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:

(a) AREEME2ER (&)

HZE2012F3F31HILFEARN B EEME
T

Kwong Tse
Jimmy Koon Wing
Cheung  LuiYuk  HoYan Chiu  KanKa  LauSin  Foo Tak
Tim Chu Candy Ricky Hon Ming Ching Total
BRF  BIK  BEUR AkE  BE®  HER AgE @5
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
A5  FAT T . Thr  TET  TEAr  TAm TA%
Fees £k = - - 120 120 120 120 480
Other emoluments  Efufis
- Salaries and -FEk
other benefits Hfth2Rh 000,44 417236 312 - - - - 2448
- Contributions to~~ — iR RiEA
retirement benefit AT
schemes - 12 12 - - - - 24
Total directors’ EEY Gt
emoluments 900 1,248 324 120 120 120 120 2,952

Mr. Kwong Jimmy Cheung Tim is also the Chief Executive of

the Company and his emoluments disclosed above include

those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

BRACENBADRZ BETRARHNA
NEREZME BRERIERERITHRAEM
Rt 2 Br#s o
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Information regarding employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two directors whose emoluments were included above for
both years. The emoluments of the remaining three highest
paid individuals, not being directors, are as follows for both
years:

B R E AR
R

Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits costs

10. EEREEZHME @)

(b) FREESHEESR

AEBRRBRRFNALEEREES &
ERMEFELMEERRBELXA - Hik
SRWHEERMEFE 2 & HMALH
ST -

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,862 1,862

44 36

1,906 1,898

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors and the other five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, during both
periods, no director waived any emoluments.

K& 2 B&H T iBiB1,000,0008 7T °

MEFER  AREREXNHETIAE
REFEAZRSFMZIAL  ERIMAK
RIMAKRE B 2 BB K EBHE 2 HE -
s - MEBEA - REEEHEEMNHE -

11. TAXATION 11. B\
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
(Restated)
(E%)
Continuing operations: BESEER

The credit comprises: BIEFT AR -

Deferred tax (note 26) REFIA (Hi7726) 69 5,908

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the

Group has no assessable profit for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

11. TAXATION (continued) 11. B8 )
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise RBEFEAGEEMSRE ([EEMEH]) &
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of EABHREREH  AEBRHEZHEA
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 FIB2008F1 A1 A2 X /H25% o

January 2008 onwards.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been made as AAE ERMIEFE NS EERTUES - A
the Group has no assessable profit for both years. R B EFSTRE -
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the results per the AFERBRGE2ARGREEZHENT ¢

consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&%)
Loss before taxation (from BR 7% A ES 18
continuing operations) (CREFECEER) (21,991) (41,955)
Tax credit at the applicable rate of 16.5% BT E16.5%:E 2 HE
(2012: 16.5%) ZFA (2012%F : 16.5%) (3,629) (6,923)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BEIARNAZ
tax purposes BIEXE (4,700) (10,664)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TEMFHRS 2
tax purposes iEh-7 7,559 8,153
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KERHIEREE 2 FHIETE 1,086 3,393
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B RBERER
previously not recognised BEEBHEYE (664) (417)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BEMAEZHBAR
operating in other jurisdictions BEZRZE 371 (156)
Others HAth (92) 706
Tax credit for the year AEERIBTA (69) (5,908)
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS

Loss for the year from continuing
operations has been arrived at
after charging:

Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a))
Other staff costs, including retirement
benefits costs

Total staff costs

Amortisation of intangible asset
(included in administrative expenses)
Auditor’s remuneration
— Current year provision
— Underprovision in prior years

Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense
Depreciation

and after crediting to other income:

Bank interest income
Dividend income from listed investments

12. REFBARERB 2 AFERR

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET &L

KREFBLEEBZ

AEEEE

BBk ¢
EXMe (f/2F10(a) 2,958 2,952
HiBTER -

BIERIRABFIA A 10,747 11,563
BT Az 13,705 14,515
BB B

(BEEEETHASA) - 1,823
ZH A&

— REEEBE 1,035 1,024

- BEFETREE 267 135

1,302 1,159
EERERIZEE

B AR 190,157 256,138
e 153 619
RREABAGTA
RITHBHA 3,288 2,585
iR E 2B EMA 1,751 1,126

108  Easyknit Enterprises Holdings Limited 2012/13 Annual Report



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

13. BRI BT

On 22 November 2009, the directors resolved to cease the
bleaching and dyeing and knitting businesses and these
businesses were ceased in December 2009 and accordingly were
presented as discontinued operations. During the year ended 31
March 2013, the Group deregistered certain subsidiaries of these
discontinued businesses (the “Ceased Subsidiaries”). The results
of the discontinued operations included in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of cash flows are set out below.

R20095 11 A22H  EFERTERIEZE A&
7 MZSEBER2009F12 AR IERRERE
HBHEREINREDRIEEET - REE20135F
SABBLEEE AEEEFHERIELEER
ZETHEBAR ((BELRILHBAR]) - EBEE
RAEZARERREGA
EBHFESSIT o

REMERZERELE

2013 2012
HK$000 HK$'000
FET BT
Profit for the year from RECRKRIEEEEK
discontinued operations REERR
Write back of other tax payable B H o fE (TR 6,139 =
Profit before taxation BR A58 A A 6,139 =
Taxation credit — overprovision of BIEFTA — RIS
PRC Enterprise Income Tax TR 5,764 =
Profit for the year from REERIEEEER 2
discontinued operations REE 11,903 -
Gain on disposal of assets constituting HEDK IR EEBEER: -
a discontinued operation, net of tax EHBRTIE = 1,285
Cumulative exchange differences in RETEREARIERB AR
respect of the Ceased Subsidiaries REfERZRAERET
reclassified from equity to profit or ESiE
loss upon deregistration 14,714 -
26,617 1,285
Cash flows from discontinued operations HREBARILREEBIEERE
Net cash inflows from investing activities REREBER B RAFE - 8,282
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continueq)

The Group submitted the liquidation accounts of the Ceased
Subsidiaries to the relevant PRC tax bureau, paid all taxes
assessed and obtained approval of the tax bureau to cancel the
tax registration of the Ceased Subsidiaries prior to cancelling the
business registration with the Huzhou Administration for Industry
and Commerce. In the opinion of the directors, the Group has
no further obligations in respect of the Ceased Subsidiaries. As
such, all recorded liabilities (including income tax payable and
other tax payable) are released during the year ended 31 March
2013 upon deregistration of the Ceased Subsidiaries.

The amount for the year ended 31 March 2012 represented
post-tax gain on disposal of assets classified as held for sale.
During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group received
RMB6,971,000 (HK$8,282,000) for the settlement of receivables
arising from the disposal of assets classified as held for sale
and compensation from the People’s Government of Zhili Town,
Wuxing District, Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province of the PRC (the
“Zhili Town Government”).

14. BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations:

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. DRI REE o)

14.

EBCEEBMNT IATRERR 2B Z0A
AEERRERIWBARIZEERE TERBZ
HERKED XA EHERESHERZ
BENBEERIEMBARZREER - EER
B AEBEREBERERLEMBARIZE—FE
T o Fitk - RE1F2013F3A31H IEFEFED
RIFMNBARRNERIBEARZEE (BEE
FFEH kLM ENTRIE) o

BE2012F3RB31BILFE 2 S IHIEHESIE
BIEHEEE 2 RiB W - R2012F3A31H IE
ER - REERDBEINIABNTREELGEE
ARBR ([#E2EBA]) WE AR%6,971,000
7T (8,282,000 7T) * {E A T H & FIERIED
CEEZREZREE -

BREFEHN (BR)
REHMEERERILEEEY -

AR RRRE 2 SREART (58) TR
AR :

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(&31)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of TEREARRF (BiE) M52
basic earnings (loss) per share mA (EE) 4,695 (34,762)
2013 2012
(Restated)
(&251)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of HREREARF (BE)
ordinary shares for the purpose of & 2 hnEFE kG5
basic earnings (loss) per share #HH 196,374,431 35,505,856
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

14. BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14. 8REXER (BB) @
(continued)
From continuing operations: REFELSEEL !
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing RRRRREGREBELEEL 2 BRERE
operations attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BIRBEUTERGTE
following data:
Loss figures are calculated as follows: EEHTIFENT
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(Z71)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RABIRERERZ
owners of the Company AEERF (BE) 4,695 (34,762)
Adjusted for: Profit for the year from HE REBRIEEERER
discontinued operations INEFE 5 A (26,617) (1,285)
Loss for the purpose of basic loss RREELCEXEB
per share from continuing operations FREABENS 2 B8 (21,922) (36,047)
2013 2012
(Restated)
(&251)
Number of shares RGEE
Weighted average number of HEREABRENS 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of MEFHRMNEE
basic loss per share 196,374,431 35,505,856
From discontinued operations: RECKRIEREEE
Basic earnings per share for the discontinued operations is BERIEREEB 2 BRERNAET AER0.136/
HK$0.136 (2012: HK$0.036) per share, based on the profit for 7t (20124 © §%0.036/5 L) * L IR B R B
the year from discontinued operations of HK$26,617,000 (2012: BRI & 7% v N E E % 726,617,000 7T
HK$1,285,000) and the denominators detailed above for basic (20124 : 1,285,000/ 7T) KA LFHl R B &

loss per share from continuing operations.

REXBBRERNBRZDEMEE -
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14.

15.

112

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

(continued)
From discontinued operations: (continued)

The denominator for the purpose of calculating basic loss per
share for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been adjusted to
reflect (i) bonus element of the rights issue completed in October
2012 on the basis of one rights share for every two ordinary
shares; (ii) consolidation of shares in October 2012 on the basis
of 20 shares being consolidated into one share; and (iii) bonus
element of the rights issue in January 2013 on the basis of five
rights shares for every ordinary share.

In addition, the denominator for the purpose of calculating basis
earnings (loss) per share for both years has been further adjusted
to reflect the bonus element of the rights issue completed in June
2013 on the basis of three rights shares for every ordinary share
(see note 34).

No diluted earnings (loss) per share is presented as the Group
did not have any potential ordinary shares for both years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following related party
transactions which also constituted continuing connected
transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Easyknit
International:

Rental expense HeEME

14.

155

BEREAER (FE) 2

RECRILEERY : (&)

A EHE201263A31B ILEE 2 EABREM
s AR ERABRURE()R2012510A TR
SRR EBRMNERE —RERR N < EEHR 2
A 5 (ii)R2012F10 B #2008 4 #F B — IR
HEZBRGEH  K(ii)R2013F1 A EHIE TR
LA T AR A AR AR (D 2 B AEM AR 2 AT FIAY

PaNgs
AN B ERMEFESRERNAT (BE) M

= HNBERE—FABRURBEN2013F6 A%
Bk 3 15 B 38 10 T 3 = AR R PR AR D 2 B AR
ZEFE D (RH7E34) »

RN A KRR BTEET B EAR
B - BRZIISREE (BB BF -
BEALRS  BEXS

(@) FA AEEREXEBRR 2ENBARA
BURBHEER S CBEALRZNT

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
2,490 2,482

Ms. Lui Yuk Chu, a director of the Company, is also one of
the beneficiaries under a family trust holding 36.74% (2012:
36.74%) equity interest of Easyknit International at 31 March
2013. She also holds 21.95% (2012: 21.95%) equity interest
of Easyknit International through an entity wholly-owned by
her. The Company is considered as a subsidiary of Easyknit
International at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 under
the new definition of control and related guidance set out in
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements’

RRREZEFEHRL LT - R2013F3H31
H 75 &% B ok & B [£36.74% (20124 :
36.74%) B RIEEEXm AL — ° KIT
BR—MEZERR 2 ERMFHEKE BB
21.95% (20124 : 21.95%) #E#% - RIEF
B RS ERE105 [SRAMISHREK] A
SR ERl 25 & - M2013463A31H
K20125F3 A31 HA R AR AKEBE 2
—FNEB AR °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

15. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

15.BEALRE BERS #)

(b)

(c)

In January 2011, the Company entered into an employment
agreement with Mr. Koon Wing Yee, the spouse of Ms.
Lui Yuk Chu, to act as general manager of the Company
for a salary of HK$50,000 per month. The employment
agreement, which constituted a connected transaction,
commenced on 21 February 2011 but may be terminated
by either party at any time by three months’ notice. The
remuneration of Mr. Koon Wing Yee as general manager of
the Company during the year ended 31 March 2013 was
HK$664,500 (2012: HK$662,000) and was included in the
“compensation of key management personnel” in (c) below.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

Short-term employee benefits 5 B R B4R A
Salaries and other benefits e RAEMEE

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes B {REFIET 212

(b)

(c)

R20115E1 A - ARAEEERL T 2 BB
BokELEFMEA B - WA %50,000
BTRABARNARBEE - 2K —1EH
B EBHZEA2011F2521 BRI -
B EERER—F4 =@ ABAME
e B E2013F3A3MBLFRNEXKEL
HEEBARARBEE 2 € A664,500/4 T
(20124 : 662,000/ 7T) B BIEE A T(c)
B [XEEZEBABZEMIA -

TEEEABZEHM

EERAMFrEEBRAEREAZHEN
S

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
4,310 4,310

73 60
4,383 4,370

The remuneration of directors and key executives are
determined by the remuneration committee and executive
directors respectively having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

KEBESBARDR 201213 Fif
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @)

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W% - BERR®E
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment Motor Construction
BA vehicles  in progress Total
RER®E RE ERIRE a5t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FAET FHET
COST B
At 1 April 2011 R20114F4 518 478 2,032 15,713 18,223
Exchange adjustments PEE ¢, 3528 3 13 554 570
Additions NE 45 - 123 168
At 31 March 2012 R201243A31H 526 2,045 16,390 18,961
Exchange adjustments I 5% 5% 1 1 60 62
Additions NS 62 = 8,853 8,915
Transfer to investment properties HEEREYE - - (25,303) (25,303)
At 31 March 2013 R2013%3831H 589 2,046 - 2,635
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT &R RE
At 1 April 2011 R2011F451H 213 1,492 6,732 8,437
Exchange adjustments e 3 12 191 206
Provided for the year KEERE 150 469 - 619
Reversal of impairment loss RIERHER
recognised in profit or loss REEERD - - (1,027) (1,027)
At 31 March 2012 20123 A31H 366 1,973 5,896 8,235
Exchange adjustments 0 5 % 1 1 8 10
Provided for the year KEERE 84 69 - 153
Reversal of impairment loss RERERLZ
recognised in profit or loss EEERD - - (1,047) (1,047)
Eliminated upon transfer to BRERANER
investment properties HisH - - (4,857) (4,857)
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H 451 2,043 - 2,494
CARRYING VALUES HREE
At 31 March 2013 H201353A31H 138 3 - 141
At 31 March 2012 72012434318 160 72 10,494 10,726
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRE @

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
according to the following useful lives:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years

In March 2013, the directors of the Company decided to transfer
construction in progress, which was partially impaired, to
investment properties under development as the Group was in
the process of negotiating with potential tenants for future leasing
of the related properties. Prior to the transfer, the directors of the
Company assessed the recoverable amount of the construction
in progress which is determined based on valuation performed by
independent qualified professional property valuer carried out at
the date of transfer to investment properties under development
by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential using the applicable market yields for the respective
locations and types of properties. As a result, a reversal of
impairment loss of HK$1,047,000 was recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$1,027,000).

FRERTIRI - DRSENE - BE RREHN
BEWERBATZAIERFEHFAERE

R EBRRE 3F104F
RE 5Z104F

R2013563A - AR AGEFEAE 2HAF B
B ARRESATERE A RAEZERIRE
ERREPRENE  FRBRLHAEEDE -
EEAN ARRESTAERIBZATKRE S
BUDREBLAEREENMELBR - NE
BRERRTREVEAYEBLERABAMS
Wiz B E R YRR 2 8 E R AR RETE R
AZHRESWAFE GEET - Bt - #%2013
F£3H31H 1L Z ) 18 & 18 £ [211,047,000% 7T
(20124 : 1,027,000/ 70) NIB=EHER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. REY =
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties development Total
BRRIRENE BEPEREME pakeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET
FAIR VALUE AVE
At 1 April 2011 R2011F4A1H 300,597 = 300,597
Exchange adjustments bE i a2 6,338 - 6,338
Additions NE 2,243 - 2,243
Increase in fair value NEEENN 33,979 - 33,979
At 31 March 2012 R201243 4318 343,157 - 343,157
Exchange adjustments BEE 5 F B 639 - 639
Additions NE 279,422 - 279,422
Reclassified from property, BYE%E BER
plant and equipment BGES Pk - 20,446 20,446
Reclassification EX bk (29,740) 29,740 -
Decrease in fair value ANEERD (30,790) - (30,790)
At 31 March 2013 #201343A31H 562,688 50,186 612,874
The carrying value of investment properties shown above A EREMEZ REEREMELR
comprises properties situated on:
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land in Hong Kong BT
Long lease REATEL 428,860 179,000
Land in the PRC AR
Medium-term lease FRERFR 49 184,014 164,157
612,874 343,157
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17. REWE %)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong at 31 March 2013 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out as at that date by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited (“Vigers”) (2012: Knight Frank Petty Limited
(“Knight Frank”)), a firm of independent qualified professional
property valuers not connected with the Group. Vigers is member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation of
investment properties in Hong Kong was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties.

During the year, the Group submitted a revised development plan
to the Zhili Town Government. Under the revised development
plan, certain bare land of the completed investment properties
was being rezoned for purpose to construct properties for leasing
in future (“Future Development Land”). Hence the directors of
the Company decided to reclassify the respective portion of
bare land amounting to HK$29,740,000 (RMB24,000,000) from
completed investment properties to investment properties under
development. The valuation of the Future Development Land
in the PRC was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar land in similar location.

The fair values of the Group’s completed investment properties
and investment properties under development in the PRC at
31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out as at those dates by Knight
Frank. The valuation of the completed investment properties and
investment properties under development (other than Future
Development Land) in the PRC was arrived at by reference to net
rental income allowing for reversionary income potential using the
applicable market yields for the respective locations and types of
properties.

The loss arising on changes in fair value of investment properties
of HK$30,790,000 has been recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: gain of HK$33,979,000).
A substantial portion of the loss arising on changes in fair
value of investment properties was arisen from the investment
properties acquired in the current year. In determining the
purchase consideration of these properties, the Group took into
account both the existing value (i.e. existing state and use of the
properties which do not reflect the future development potential)
and the bare site value which, in the opinion of the directors,
reflect the prevailing market conditions, the real market value and
the future development potential of the properties. In determining
the fair value of these properties at 31 March 2013, the directors
(and the independent property valuers under the instructions of
the directors) only took into account the existing value of these
properties as the Group has not yet obtained ownership of all
units of the building in which these properties are situated.

RNEBER2013F3A31B 2 BB IREMENTFE
TREAREBRERBE Y B A EREEYER
EMTRRTEETGBERAR AR ([E%E])
(20124 : F3pRlatRiT AR AR ([%PF))) B
ZEHETHEZEEEE c BHISHMATEIE
fifees  FEREVEZHENLRERER
MERERIERZTIHBRERE °

FR - REBRIETREE T8 2 HERAT -
REZEREFE B RENEZETE
W EMREMEEMEERB R ZNHE ([BE
BRELW]) Bt ARABEERERD THRE
B 2 B ZEHE4529,740,000 BT (AR
#24,000,000) EFHBEHEPRENE - KB
FRzBEZEEL I ZEEI2ERBELHRE
BUEZMBRZEBRERE o

7N &= B 1201343 4318 F201243A31H 2 &
BE R EMERBEEFRENEZAFET
HORZEBRET HEMETE - RFBZBE
TRERENERZERERENE (AREEL
BN 2 HEDSERBERTS WG 2 BB
BRERRZEERBRREERAZBSBA
FE o

B E2013F3A3IA L FE 2R EMEZ AT
& & & & 830,790,000/ 7T (20124 : U 25
33,979,000/ 70) ERIBRHER - HEWMEZA
FEEHEERTORERTFRABAZERED
¥ -GETHENEZEABE  AEEREGZE
BEBRAEE (MRERBAREEEN2ME
HRARER) RESA AR LR BT -
EFMBRARBEEHZEEWREER &E
T EWER2013F3A3IB 2 AFER @R
AEEVKRESHEMENEZEENZEE
NzHEEE B2 (REESRRZBIMER
BRF) REBHEMEZIRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

GEMBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continuea) 17. REYXE »)
All of the Group’s leasehold interests in land held under operating FEEMEREEHENBTRIES 2 AL

leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model

and are classified and accounted for as investment properties. Bk e

18. LOANS RECEIVABLE

Unsecured

— guaranteed by outside parties and
bearing interest at a fixed rate of
5% per annum

— bearing interest at a fixed rate of
5% per annum

Amount due from borrowers
repayable after one year
shown under non-current assets

18. B E

BEDARFEEXFERSBERREDET

2012
HK$'000
F&T

2013
HK$’000
FHET
EI
- HEZEERNIZEATEER
e
7,500
— REEFEE5EHE
10,000
BRRNIERBEEY —FRIBESE
ZEWERAEE
17,500

The management closely monitors the credit quality of loans

receivable and considers loans receivable that are neither past MERAZHBE R

due nor impaired to be of good credit quality with reference to
financial background and creditability of individual borrowers,

subsequent settlement and payment history of the borrowers. No EBAEKER
loans receivable is past due at the end of the reporting period.

All loans receivable are denominated in HKD, functional currency

of the relevant group entity, at the end of the reporting period. BEEATTIIE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

e MBHRRME @

For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B N EMEWFIE

2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Trade receivables 2 5 WA 14,550 15,570

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIZIREE = g

14,550 15,570

Prepayments SEUNE e 812 339
Deposits paid to suppliers to be BT FERER 2/ T

realised within 1 year HEmRE 6,727 5,632

Other receivables H i fEIEIR 907 4,248

22,996 25,789

The Group allows an average credit period of up to 90 days to its
customers. The aged analysis of trade receivables, based on the

AEEETHAEP 2 FHREHZEIR - RIFE
AREEREARZBZAY  EHRUFEARR

invoice date which approximate revenue recognition date, at the LR ZIRROMMT ¢
end of the reporting period is as follows:

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 60 days 0-60H 14,534 15,550
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 16 20
14,550 15,570

The management closely monitors the credit quality of trade and
other receivables and considers trade and other receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

EEERRENEIREMBUKB L EEEER
ERARRBEBPRREZE S REMEYAR

ARIHEEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

19.

20.

120

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$537,000 (2012:
HK$544,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for allowance. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

Over due by 1 to 60 days EiBHI1Z=60H
Over due by 61 to 90 days EiBEI61Z=90H
Over due by over 90 days E AR A0 H

19. EZ N EMEWFE @)

RfEBEH  AEBZESRKFTBELESD &
M { & ££537,0007% 7T (20124 : 544,000/ 7T
AEBHEREIREE AEBLRERZE

REERFT B TR -

BERHERBEE S ERFIEZ Rk

T
2013 2012

HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET

521 523

16 20

- 1

537 544

Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade
receivables that are past due are generally recoverable and as a
result, no allowance was made for trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

uUsD £
RMB AR

AEEREBERLR B
A bAsE - At - RS
B 5 RAGAT TR -

ARENEBEBERNEE
2B REMEYFAENT

B SRR
xR WRERZE

SN2 BB 5IE

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
13,622 14,391

3 157

BILLS RECEIVABLE

At 31 March 2013, the bills receivable are aged within 60 days
and are denominated in USD.

20. EWEE

R2013F3A310 * EWEE 2Kk 2608 AR

WRTTHIE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

21.

22.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

The investments held for trading comprise equity securities listed
in Hong Kong and are stated at fair value which are based on the
quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The bank balances and cash held by the Group comprise
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
0.001% to 4.6% (2012: 0.001% to 3.1%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and bank balances. As
at 31 March 2013, the Group placed a time deposit, amounting to
RMB66,880,000 (equivalent to HK$82,875,000), with a financial
institution in the PRC with original maturity of three months (2012:
nil). The time deposit contains embedded derivative, the interest
rate of which is determined with reference to the exchange rate
of USD against HKD and ranges from 2.86% to 4.0% per annum.
The embedded derivative is considered closely related to the
host contract as it would not double the Group’s initial return on
the host contract when comparing to the host contract without
embedded derivative. Therefore it has not been accounted
for separately in the consolidated financial statements and is
included in “bank balances and cash” as at 31 March 2013.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

21.

22,

BHEE

FIEEEREABRREB LD 2B H T IRBRH R
Fiemg il B2 AFERT -

BERE

ﬁE/

ARERE T RBBRAL OERRATHE
F = 7£0.001/2 £4.6F 2 fd (20124 : 0.001E
F318) 2 ZEASZNEBZ GHRTER -

TRa ﬁ% & IE ﬁ

RekFERASRKRFA L RIRTHES - 120135
3A31H  AEEHE P ESHEENRAR
#66,880,0007T (% {582,875,000/% 7T) 2 = &
AEH 2 EHFR (2012F : &) - EHEXE
ENEBMEER  BXZEENSZETEAT
ZRBEREFFEA2.86%%E4.0%  LERER
EVTEHBZERBEN  ARTEMEAEER

FRENZIREE  AEITEBEB HRAEE

TEENEETHE - A TERGRE I BRE
WB iR R E BIEN20134F3831H 2 [R1T
ERERBALIA -

REEUEBAERBEEEENINZ EWTIE
ZRTHEHBRBESNT ¢

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET T
HKD BT 28 28
RMB AREE 13 14
UsD e 65,003 40,959
EUR BT - 10,199
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The aged analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date,
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23. EZ R HMBENRE

RERZAE  BZRENRERREHRZERRK
DI

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET &
Trade payables: B RNTIE -

0 - 60 days 0-60H 5,007 7,252
61 — 90 days 61 —90H 45 -
5,052 7,252

Rental deposits received and Bleke REkES
rental received in advance 4,436 2,701
Accruals FBIREH 3,456 2,968
Other taxes payable H A IR 4,474 11,070
Other payables H it B8 216 719
17,634 24,710

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 days.
The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in

currencies other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

usD e

BEZ R A308 -

ARENEAEBERNESH NN EBIE
ZEHREMEMNREMT :

2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
93 85

24.BILLS PAYABLE

At 31 March 2012, the bills payable were aged within 30 days. All
of the Group’s bills payable were denominated in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.

24. ERERE

R2012F3A318 * ENEE ZREKA30B R -
REBZABRNEBAAEBEEER 24
E®LIE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

25.

26.

SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

Carrying amount repayable: JEEEFIE REE
— within one year - —FR

— between one to two years - —EWEF

— between two to five years -MERF

— more than five years —BBAF

Less: Amount due within one year shown
under current liabilities

)il

Amount due after one year

R—FRABZEE

25. FEHRTIER

2013
HK$000
FET

2012
HK$'000
FAT

6,755 =
6,949 =
22,035 =
132,948 -

168,687 =

B RRBRERTZ—FA

(6,755) i

161,932 =

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s secured bank borrowings carried
interest at HIBOR plus 2.5%, with effective interest ranging
from 2.71% to 2.72% per annum, and are repayable by 240
monthly instalments. The loans are secured by investment
properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$372,000,000. The proceeds were used to finance acquisition
of investment properties.

All bank borrowings are denominated in HKD, functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, at the end of the
reporting period.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been
offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

R2013%F3A31H ' AE B 2 B HFRITEE
BEAEBBRTEAEREN25% 2 FHE - &
BWE R R H2.71%52.72% @ N 52408 &
ABE - ERUAEEZREMEREESG R
372,000,000 TEAE A - FIEAEBARE
MEIRE °

ELHRAE

Deferred tax liabilities

RBEMRZABRTEEDAEBEEERZ
e BB TIE -
26. BRI
mEeMBRARZ25IME @ BEHEEER
BREEIEE - REUBMEN S < BERIEZERZ
DA :
31.3.2013 31.3.2012 1.4.2011
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
FET TET T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E31) (E71)
(12,870) (12,888) (18,252)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

26.

124

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 26.

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

FEERIE (2)

REARBEFECHRAR/EIBZZELENE (R
&) BEAREZEHNT

Revaluation of Intangible
properties asset Tax losses Total
MEEHE BREE HIEEHE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FBT FBT FET
At 1 April 2011 (originally stated)  #20114451H

(REZ23) (20,525) (3,566) 335 (23,756)

Adjustments upon adoption of RN ESEDE 125
amendments to HKAS 12 BRIAZ B 5,839 - (335) 5,504
At 1 April 2011 (restated) R2011464A18 (E51) (14,686) (3,566) - (18,252)
Exchange adjustments M 5 55 % (544) - - (544)
Credit to profit or loss for the year FAAREEBZHE A 2,342 3,566 - 5,908
At 31 March 2012 (restated) R2012F3 /318 (7)) (12,888) - - (12,888)
Exchange adjustments M 5 R (51) - - (51)
Credit to profit or loss for the year FAAFEEEZF A 69 - - 69
At 31 March 2013 72013637318 (12,870) - - (12,870)

At 31 March 2013, tax losses not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements were HK$40,459,000 (2012: HK$37,902,000,
restated). The losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unrecognised tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.

R201363A31H + i 18 & $840,459,000/% T
(20124 : 37,902,000/ 7t © &%) W38 B R LR
EMHRRANER - ZBEVERBLEE - AN
R RACEFBA - RIUZA AR ERTIE
EERERERAECHRBEEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. |4
Nominal
value per Number of
share shares Amount
BREME R&GHE agm
Notes HK$ HK$'000
it BT FAT
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2011 and R201154R10 K
31 March 2012 2012%3H31H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Consolidation of shares =X (@i (19,000,000,000) =
0.20 1,000,000,000 200,000
Reduction of share capital A (d)(iii) - - (190,000)
0.01 1,000,000,000 10,000
Increase in new consolidated HAGRMEM
shares (d)(v) 0.01 19,000,000,000 190,000
At 31 March 2013 R2013F3A31H 0.01 20,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRAR
At 1 April 2011 and R2011E4B1B K
31 March 2012 2012%3A31H 0.01 550,686,675 5,507
Issue of new shares kDB (a) 0.01 97,470,000 975
Issue of new shares AR 1T (b) 0.01 114,700,000 1,147
762,856,675 7629
Rights issue of shares R R (c) 0.01 381,428,337 3,814
1,144,285,012 11,443
Consolidation of shares Bin & 6 (d)i) (1,087,070,762) =
0.20 57,214,250 11,443
Reduction of share capital AR (d)(ii) - (10,871)
0.01 57,214,250 572
Rights issue of shares IR (e) 0.01 286,071,250 2,861
Issue of new shares MR ET (f) 0.01 68,656,000 686
At 31 March 2013 720135634317 411,941,500 4,119
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

126

(a)

On 12 June 2012, the Company allotted 97,470,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.141 per share. The Company raised
HK$13,606,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to serve as general working capital of the
Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to the
general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual
general meeting held on 30 August 2011. Further details
of this placing of new shares are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 30 May 2012 and 12 June 2012.

On 31 July 2012, the Company allotted 114,700,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees at a
placing price of HK$0.106 per share. The Company raised
HK$12,037,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of placing to finance the fitting and renovation of the
Group’s properties and serve as general working capital of
the Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to
the general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the annual
general meeting held on 29 June 2012.

On 3 October 2012, the Company allotted 381,428,337
rights shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.077 per rights share on the basis of one rights
share for every two then existing ordinary shares held. The
Company raised HK$29,229,000 (net of expenses) with
the intention at the time of rights issue to finance property
investments and serve as general working capital of the
Group.

27. &S ()

(a)
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d)

As announced by the Company on 11 October 2012, the
Company proposed to effect (i) a share consolidation
pursuant to which every twenty issued and unissued then
existing shares of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.20 each (“Consolidated
Share(s)”); (ii) the reduction of the nominal value of
each issued Consolidated Share from HK$0.20 to
HK$0.01 by cancelling HK$0.19 paid up share capital for
each Consolidated Share (“Issued Capital Reduction”);
(iii) the reduction of the par value of all shares in the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$0.20
each to HK$0.01 each, resulting in the reduction of the
authorised share capital from HK$200,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares of par value of HK$0.20
each to HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of
par value HK$0.01 each; (iv) the transfer of the credit arising
from the Issued Capital Reduction to the contributed surplus
account of the Company; (v) the increase of the authorised
share capital of the Company from HK$10,000,000 divided
into 1,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01 each
to HK$200,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of
par value HK$0.01 each; and (vi) the transfer of any credit
balance in the contributed surplus account of the Company
to set off against accumulated losses of the Company, which
amounted to HK$24,618,000. The above are collectively
referred to the “Capital Reorganisation” Further details of
the Capital Reorganisation are set out, among others, in
the Company’s circular dated 15 November 2012. Special
resolutions approving the Capital Reorganisation were
passed at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 10 December 2012. The Capital Reorganisation became
effective at 9:00 a.m. on 11 December 2012.

After the completion of Capital Reorganisation and on 11
January 2013, the Company allotted 286,071,250 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.40
per rights share on the basis of five rights shares for
every one then existing share held. The Company raised
HK$113,875,000 (net of expenses) with the intention at the
time of rights issue to finance the property investments and
serve as general working capital of the Group.
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27.

28.

128

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

() On 18 February 2013, the Company allotted 68,656,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each by placing to six placees
at a placing price of HK$0.44 per share. The Company
raised HK$29,906,000 (net of expenses) with the intention
at the time of placing to finance the property investments of
the Group. The new placing shares were issued pursuant to
the general mandate granted to the directors by a resolution
of the shareholders of the Company passed at the special
general meeting held on 22 January 2013.

All shares issued during the year ended 31 March 2013 rank pari
passu within the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The 2002 Share Option Scheme

On 6 June 2002, a share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
Under the terms of the 2002 Share Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion,
offer options to any employee (full-time and part-time), director,
supplier, consultant or advisor of any member of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The 2002 Share Option Scheme,
which is valid for a period of 10 years, was terminated on 22
June 2012.

The purposes of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are to attract
and retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentives to eligible participants and to promote the success of
the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2002 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any
shares to be issued under any other share option schemes of
the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

27.

28.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 28. BB HEGTEl ()

The 2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2002
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company with such grantee
and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of the Company and shall end on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
There is no specific requirement under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme that an option must be held for any minimum period
before it can be exercised, but its terms provide that the board of
directors of the Company has the discretion to impose a minimum
period at the time of offer of any particular option. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within 14 days from the
date of the offer, with the payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the offeree.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2002 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during the years ended 31 March 2013 and
31 March 2012.
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28.

130

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The 2012 Share Option Scheme

On 29 June 2012, a new share option scheme (the “2012 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company. Under the terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company may, at its absolute discretion,
offer options to any full-time employee, director or consultant of
any member of the Group (including associated companies) to
subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the terms and
conditions stipulated therein. The 2012 Share Option Scheme is
valid during the period of 10 years commencing 29 June 2012,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purposes of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to
encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued under the
2012 Share Option Scheme must not (when aggregate with any
shares to be issued under any other share option schemes of
the Company) exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each eligible participant of the 2012
Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting of the Company with such grantee
and his associate(s) abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the share options is determined by the
board of directors of the Company and shall end on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the options.
At the time of grant of the share options, the Company must (a)
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which a share option
must be held before it can be exercised in whole or in part, and
(b) specify the minimum performance target(s), if any, which must
be achieved before the share options can be exercised in whole
or in past. The amount payable on acceptance of an offer for
grant of share options is HK$1.
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28.

29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The 2012 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price in respect of any particular option of the
2012 Share Option Scheme may be determined by the board of
directors of the Company in its absolute discretion and notified
to each offeree but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on
the date of offer, which must be a business day; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of offer.

No share options were granted under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme or exercised during the year ended 31 March 2013 since
its adoption.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the following assets of the
Group were pledged to a bank to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group:

28.

29.
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2012BB R FERTEl (&)
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. BREMNRH
The Group as lessee EEBEREEA
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FHET
Minimum lease payments recognised in FERRIERFER
profit or loss during the year ZEERSAR 2,597 2,775
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments P& ER - ARRERATF S 2 TR
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable HEROZRARSERE MR AER
operating leases which fall due as follows:
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within one year —FR 2,528 240
In the second year to fifth year inclusive E_FZFRF (BEEEME) 3,536 29
6,064 269
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the RERAONTIEREB 2 ETHAESYEZER
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated for e HOZHBE—Z==F2/@ (2012F : —
lease terms ranging from one to three years (2012: one to two EMF)
years).
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments RIBAREBEI 24 BN AR E RITE
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for SIS AL HE o

contingent rental payments.
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. REMENRH &)
(continued)
The Group as lessor FEBEEREHHEA
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property rental income earned during the year ERBELZ MRS UA 11,780 5,998
Less: Outgoings B i - -
Net rental income HEWAF5E 11,780 5,998
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with RBEBR - AEBEBF VU TARRRKER
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: LOENE-
2013 2012
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year “HEE 9,927 75
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERF (BREEEMT) 8,965 7,545
Over five years b Rakad - 495
18,892 15,215
Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease payments WREBEASE 284 - BANKEEE R &
are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for S SAHEN TR - BENELZBEEHNEP
contingent rental payments. The properties held have committed 2HABH—ZERE (2012F : —F/55F) o
tenants for terms of one to five years (2012: one to six years).
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BARHAR
2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but EHESIEIENN S el
not provided in the consolidated BECEARZ BN :
financial statements in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment - 0% BELE 1,399 9,850
- investment properties —REWF 3,617 162,000
5,016 171,850
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 32. BIRERIGTEI

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employees are required to
contribute 5% of their monthly salaries or up to a maximum of
HK$1,000, which was revised to HK$1,250 with effect from 1
June 2012 and they can choose to make additional contributions.
The employer’s monthly contributions are calculated at 5% of the
employee’s monthly salaries or up to a maximum of HK$1,000,
which was revised to HK$1,250 with effect from 1 June 2012 (the
“mandatory contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100%
of the employer’s mandatory contributions upon their retirement
at the age of 65, death or total incapacity.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
the state-sponsored pension scheme operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
pension scheme is to make the required contributions.

There were no forfeited contributions utilised to offset employers’
contributions for the year. The employers’ contributions
which have been dealt with in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income were as follows:

Employers’ contributions recognised in profit or loss  FEz R #ER 2 EE T

AEBRBEEBRE M AE S EEH - RUR
EMtFRHEABEERKBANGE (RESE
2 NeEEHET  EEAREERF M
5%k & % 41,0007 7T+ It &% 5201256
1B{B8A1,2508 T « & 8 W AlE B {EH BBIME
o BEBARFAKREE 2 BRFEFTEMRRK
5% 5 % /1,000 7T - k&8 H2012566 H1H
B2 1,250/ 7T ([a8 &1 4tk ]) - 1B 5 7655
BARK TS TEERTRENR  IZHE
EREIEETRZ100% °

RAEBEZHBRARZEEATEBRNRILZER
BRRAEHEIKE - WBRARARFEETH
D RRARE M AEEZ A EEARE

R BIEHATRTE 2 AR

ARERIRB LRGSR AT BIEE SHE EHK -
REE2HRERTFREZBERTMT

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
413 434

At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce the contributions payable in the
future years.

REIREHR - WRAERIEFA]
Epd AN

FRYERE R REF
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SUBSIDIARIES

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

33. TEMBRRIZFHE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2013 and 31 March 2012 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HEARER

Chancemore Limited

City China International Limited
B ER AR AR

Clever Wise Holdings Limited
BIEARERAR

Easyknit Global Company Limited
XERRERAF

Easyknit Worldwide Company Limited

Gainever Corporation Limited
KEBRRAR

Main Lucky Enterprises Limited
PatFERAA

Top Channel Enterprises Limited
B PEERAT

Easyknit Enterprises (Huzhou) Co., Ltd.
(“Enterprises Huzhou")*

KEEFE (M) BR2A (TAMER)) *

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

7201343 A31 8 K20126E3A318 » KA Al *
THBAR ZFBMOT

Nominal value Proportion of nominal

of issued share value of issued share

capital/ paid-up capital/paid-up registered
Place of registered capital/indirectly held
incorporation/ capital/ by the Company
establishment stated capital AARBESEE
and operation BRIRA/ BRITRE/ Principal
AL/ BREMRE BREMRE activities
RYREEHE ERRAEE HEFAL TEXHK

2013 2012
British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong LTARIET MERE
EREREE /BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Loan financing
&k LRR1AT ENRE
British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary US$1 100% 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong LARIET NERE

EBRNEE/BE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of garments
i LaEkeET RKEE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of garments
&R LEkeET RKEE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of securities
&R LaReAT BEES
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
&k LERIAT NERE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100% 100%  Property investment
A LRRIAT NERE
PRC Registered 100% 100%  Property investment
H US$25,544,206 NERE

MR

25,544,206 7T
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 3. TEMB AR ZFHE )

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

*

Enterprises Huzhou is a wholly foreign owned enterprise
established in the PRC, to be operated for 50 years up to 14
December 2054.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company, which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would
result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of these
subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong. The principal activities of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Principal activities Principal place of business
FERRY TRERMH

Investment holding Hong Kong

RAER B

Inactive Hong Kong

AR B

Inactive PRC

EE i

* MMNEEE—MERFEKZINERED
¥ REHAS0F - EE2054F 128148

BREARTEZTZER - LRMIIRZARAH
BLF RIBREAFREIZEIBERARE
BEIZERD  MilLHEMMBARZFEAE
EERBRILE -

WREER - AR AMA LB AEEN S LT
REEIHELT - KEHBATABHRES

+
BB - EHBATZ EBEHEEMNT

bs

Number of subsidiaries

MELQEEE

2013 2012
6 6
6 5
2 4
14 15

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at 31
March 2013 or 31 March 2012.

RE M B A 72013543 A31H 51201243 A 31
BEITEMERES
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34. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE

35.

REPORTING PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 5 April 2013, the Company
proposed to raise approximately HK$123.6 million (before
expenses) by way of the rights issue of 1,235,824,500 rights

shares of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per

rights share on the basis of three rights shares for every one then

existing share held. This rights issue of shares was approved by

the Company’s independent shareholders at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2013. 1,235,824,500

rights shares were allotted on 19 June 2013.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances

Current liabilities
Other payables

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves (Note)

FRBEE
NI =NGIL £

RPEE

H ft fE IR
RITHER

mBRE
H it B 5R

mEBEEFE
BEFE

AR
& (#iL)

34. REHMARREE

WA R R R2013F4 A58 R AR FER
BEERA—REGREROER = RERK M
ZEE - LEREKRBRMN.0OIBTIREE
fid %1,235,824,5008% 1 iz I 0 - A & & 4
123,600,000 7T (B FEZAT)  LEKRERHE
R2013F5 416 B RIT AR A FAIRERSER
N A 2 B IR R At o 1,235,824 ,5008% £ AR AR
MER2013F6 A19R L% -

35. "D A 2 BAR R K

2013 2012
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
571,647 446,429
244 207
121,286 59,826
121,530 60,033
2,035 2,417
119,495 57,616
691,142 504,045
4,119 5,507
687,023 498,538
691,142 504,045
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013 #{Z20134F3H31HIFFE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

138

THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company’s reserves during the current

and prior years are as follows:

At 1 April 2011 201154718

Total comprehensive expense for ~ RAEE2EBREE
the year

At 31 March 2012 2012534318

Total comprehensive expense for ~ AFE2ERR A8
the year

Issue of new shares Bk

Transaction costs attributable to ~ E/75R 7 X HHA
issue of new shares

Reduction of share capital
upon capital reorganisation

Set-off contributed surplus against S ABEMEH 25 ER
accumulated losses

RAE A 2 RAHIR

At 31 March 2013 201353318

35. AR A Z B BAMRRE 2

Hiat : ARRZHEERFARBEFEZZE
A
Share Capital Contributed ~ Accumulated

premium reserve surplus losses Total
RiEE RARtE BAB& iR #E
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET FAT
169,872 53,194 299,722 (8,575) 514,213
- - - (15,675) (15,675)
169,872 53,194 299,722 (24,250) 498,538
= = = (11,556) (11,556)
190,425 = = = 190,425
(1,255) — = = (1,255)

= - 10,871 a 10,871

. 2 (24,618) 24,618 i
359,042 53,194 285,975 (11,188) 687,023
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Financial Summary
MBERBE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 March
HZE3A3MBLEE
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated)
(&7)
Turnover BET 59,960 52,385 348,081 286,916 223,756
(Loss) profit before taxation ~BFiAT (E18) %7 (46,205) (16,837) 69,999 (40,670) (1,138)
Taxation (charge) credit i (%) A (1,252) (1,221) (4,939) 5,908 5,833
(Loss) profit for the year ARARRE
attributable to owners of FE(EAREE
the Company (B18) &4 (47,457) (18,058) 65,060 (34,762) 4,695
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
M3B31H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FE
(Restated)
(&%)
Total assets BEE 388,119 548,793 702,005 662,136 1,003,979
Total liabilities BafE (31,539) (58,810) (73,643) (53,900) (206,100)
356,580 489,983 628,362 608,236 797,879
Equity attributable to owners A2 &G E
of the Company FE(G 356,580 489,983 628,362 608,236 797,879

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been
restated to reflect the effect of adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12
“Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The results, assets and
liabilities for the three years ended 31 March 2009, 2010 and 2011
were extracted from the respective annual reports and not restated to
reflect the effect of the adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12.

BZE2012F3A31AILFE 2 B ER B E5 bA R B
RMBEBSHMRASE M2 BB S EE12% (5
A EERE - WEEBEE] 2¥E - HZ2009
F - 2010F M2011F3A3IB L FEZ£E - EER
BEARBBEREERETRERRAT B
F12% (BF1A4) BIIRMETE -
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Summary of Properties
Y EZ L

At 31 March 2013 20139 3H31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWHE
Approximate
gross floor/
Location bibeld Purpose saleable/site area
R BHeE EREE
(sq.ft.)
(FrR)
1. Ground Floor BB Commercial 580
No.148 Johnston Road it [SES
Wanchai 148514~
Hong Kong
2, Ground Floor and Cockloft bR e Commercial 1,232
No.13 Matheson Street )4 BB #7135% [SES
Causeway Bay R R EE
Hong Kong
3. 1st — 5th Floors, BRI Commercial/ 3,765
No. 15 Matheson Street 7B 155 Residential
Causeway Bay 112551 mE /=
Hong Kong
4, Ground Floor BS iR Commercial 472
No. 6 Cannon Road =EAT6%: [HES
Causeway Bay R
Hong Kong
5. Two parcels of land MiIRE AT ERM 2 13t Industrial 1,805,534

g A BT T & M ™ T%
RERHERRREIAN
RIBEIAE - BETR

at an industrial site located at
the South of Hengtang Harbour,
the West of Dongliang Road,

Zhili Town, Wuxing District, BREKEREZEENR
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province —RATEEER ZZEY °

of the People’s Republic of China
with a total of six building
blocks being built and one
building block under construction.
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